
(:;AiE\\iv\»:nH:i:..

Yakima River Canyon;
wWWc-ca.

to Nac^

SELAH CITY COUNCIL

6:30pm September 23, 2014



Selah City Council
Regular Meeting
Tuesday, September 23, 2014
6:30pm
City Council Chambers

CITY OF SELAH

115 West Naches Avenue

Selah, Washington 98942

Mayor:
Mayor Pro Tern:
Council Members:

City Administrator:
City Attorney:
Cler1(n"reasurer:

AGENDA

A. Call to Order - Mayor Gawlik

B. Roll Call

C. Pledge of Allegiance

D. Agenda Changes None

E. Public Appearances/Introductions/Presentations

1. Mike King, Lions Club - US flags for City flagpoles

F. Getting To Know Our Businesses

G. Communications

1. Oral

John Gawlik

Brooke Finch

Paul Overby
John Tiemey
Dave Smeback

Allen Schmid

Roy Sample
Jane Williams

David Kelly
Bob Noe

Dale Novobielski

This is a public meeting. If you wish to address the Council concerning any matter that is not on the agenda, you may do so
now. Please come forward to the podium, stating your name for the record. The Mayor reserves the right to place a time limit
on each person asking to be heard.

2. Written

H. Proclamations/Announcements

I. Consent Agenda

None

None

All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion, vrithout
discussion. Should any Council Member or member of the audience request that any item of the Consent Agenda be
considered separately, that Item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and become a part of the regular Agenda.

Monica Lake *

Dale N. *

1. Approval of Minutes: September 9, 2014 Study Session & Council Meeting
2. Approval of Claims & Payroll

J. Public Hearings
Dale N. 1. Public Hearing on Revenue Sources for the 2015 Budget

K. New Business

David Kelly I. Creation ofa New Position
L. Old Business

Charlie Brown 1. Selah Parks & Recreation Program/Activity Price Increase Proposal



M. Resolutions

DaleN. I. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign an Updated Section 125 Cafeteria Plan
Dennis Davison 2. Resolution Approving the Preliminary Plat of "First and Home Estates" (912.67.14-

04) and Adopting Findings and Conditions of Preliminary Plat Approval

N. Ordinances

Dennis Davison 1. Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 1634 Zoning Map Amendment No. 914.67.14-
03 Rezone to Planned Development (PD)

O. Communications

1. Oral

This is a public meeting, ifyou wish to address the Council concerning any matter that is not on the agenda, you may do so now.
Please come forward to the podium, stating your name for the record. The Mayor reserves the right to place a time limit on each
person asking to be heard.

P. Reports/Announcements

1. Mayor
2. Council Members

3. Departmental
4. Boards

Q. Executive Session

R. Adjournment

Each item on the Council Agenda is
covered by an Agenda Item Sheet (AIS)

A veilow AIS indicates an action item. Next Study Session
Next Regular Meeting

October 14, 2014
October 14. 2014



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Informational Item

9/23/2014 E-1

Title: US Flags for City flagpoles

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Mike King, Lions Club

Action Requested: Informational - No action

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

N/A

Background / Findings & Facts:

The Lions Club requested permission to address Council regarding a donation
of flags to the City for use on City flagpoles.

Recommended Motion:

N/A



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

A GENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

9/23/2014 I-l

Title: Approval of Minutes: September 9, 2014 Study Session and Council
Meeting

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Monica Lake, Executive Assistant

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of the Minutes from the last Council Meeting.

Background / Findings & Facts:

See Minutes for details.

Recommended Motion:

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as read. (This item is part of the

Consent Agenda)



Study Session Minutes
Selah City Cduncil
September 9,2014

3:30pm

Mayor Gawlik opened the Study Session.

Public Works Driector Henne discussed the East Goodlander Road improvement project, noting
that it originally consisted of widening the road, reconstruction of the roadbed, curbs,gutter,
lighting, and sidewalks. He talkedabout fimding sources for the project, such as TIB moneyfor a
grind and overlay plus $8,400 out ofthe Street Fund, and that it may be possible to get ST?
monies in four or five years. He also addressed the water and sewer upgrades that need to be
done, saying that the funds for that would come out ofthe Water and Sewer Funds.

Mayor Gawlik polled the Council for a consensus to proceed with the project. Consensus was
unanimous.

Mayor Gawlik thanked Public Works Director Henne for his time.

The Study Session ended at 3:56pm.

Page I of I Selah City Council Study Session Minutes 5/27/2014



City of Selah
Council Minutes

September 9,2014

Regular Meeting
Selah Coimcil Chambers

115 West Naches Avenue

Selah, WA 98942

A.

B.

Call to Order

Roll Call

Mayor Gawlik called the meeting to order at 4:00pm.

Members Present: John Hemey; Dave Smeback; Allen Schmid; Brooke Finch; Roy Sample;
Jane Williams

Members Excused: Paul Overby

Staff Present:

Pledge ofAllegiance

David Kelly, City Administrator; Bob Noe, City Attorney; Gary Hanna,
Fire Chief; Joe Henne, Public Works Director; Rick Hayes, Police Chief;
Eric Steen, Deputy Police Chief; Charlie Brown, Recreation Manager;
Monica Lake, Executive Assistant

Coimcil Member Schmid led the Pledge ofAllegiance. A moment ofsilence was observed in memory of
9/11.

D.

E.

F.

G.

Agenda Changes None

Public Appearances/Introductions/ Presentations

Getting To Know Our Businesses None

Communications

1. Oral

None

Mayor Gawlik opened the meeting.

Curtis Vangstad approached the podium and addressed the Council. He introduced himself, saying that
he is running for County Commissioner for District3, and spoke brieflyabout his background and
qualifications. He thanked Council for their time.

Selah City Council Minutes 9/9/2014



Nonna Smithapproached the podiumand addressed the Cormcil. She said that she was at the High
Schoolearlier todayduringan emergency; she was impressed by the swift response ofthe School
Resource Officer and that both the Fire and Police departments were there within a minute. She thanked
bothdepartments for their efforts, addingthe Selah is blessed to have such an awesome Police
Department. She expressed her appreciation for the information provided at the Study Session pertaining
to the road near the High School, and that she is pleased it will be fixed to make it safer for the
community.

Larry Matson approached the podium and addressed the Coxmcil. He introduced himself, saying that he
is a candidate for the YVCOG director position candidate.

Seeing no one else rise to speak. Mayor Gawlik closed the meeting.

2. Written

H. Proclamations/Announcements None

I. Consent Agenda

Executive Assistant Lake read the Consent Agenda.

All items listed with an asterisk (*) were considered as part of the Consent Agenda.

* 1. Approval of Minutes: August 26,2014 Council Meeting and September 4.2014 Council
Retreat

* 2. Approval of Claims & Payroll:

Payroll Checks Nos. 77828 - 77873 for a total of $213,799.44
Claim Checks Nos. 64463 - 64522 for a total of$213,222.21

Council Member Tierney moved, and Council Member Finch seconded, to approve the Consent
Agenda as read. By voice vote, approval of the Consent Agenda was unanimous.

J. Public Hearing None

K. New Business None

L. Old Business None

M. Resolutions

1. ResolutionAuthorizing the Mayor to sign a FimdingApplication to obtain a grant for
City-wide energy improvements

Selah City Council Minutes 9/9/2014



Public Works Director Henna addressed M - 1. He outlined the list ofprojects that they have identified
as thosethat are necessary and will score well whenapplying for the Department ofCommerce (DOC)
grant, noting thatthe total costof theproject is $1,645,000, of which $403,000 is potentially a grant
from the DOC,whichwould leavethe City on the hook for $1,148,000. He outlinedthe paymentplan,
which would primarily bepaid for bythe energy savings from making these changes, and said that he
would like to put in $150,000 outof the sewer reserve fimd to help cover costs. He requested that
Council authorize the Mayor to sign the application.

Council Member Schmid felt that it would be a good move for the City to apply for the grant, adding
thatthey willneed to replace the equipment anyway andwilldo better witha farmore energy efficient
system in place.

Council Member Williams wondered if the necessary frmds would come out ofCity coffers.

Public Works Director Henne replied in the affirmative, saying that the DOC would potentially give the
City a $400,000 grant to help with expenses.

Council Member Williams felt uncomfortable because they hadn't seen the audit yet, adding that she
wanted to see it before voting on the matter.

Public Works DirectorHenne responded that the application is due by September15thor 18th,and that
they have been pushing down to the limit to get it done.

Council Member Williams asked, if the City received the grant, would we be obligated to use the funds
or could they opt not to.

Public WorksDirector Henne replied that, ifCouncil chooses not to take the grant money, they will owe
$100,000 to the DOC for the audit.

MurrayGreenwood, Amerisco,approached the podiumand addressed Council.He afiSrmed that Council
is not obligated if the City is awardedthe grant,and that the only fee would be the audit expenditure
already approved by Council. He added that some other city would be happy to make use of the funds.

City Administrator Kelly asked for a dollar amount.

Mr. Greenwood responded that DOC would waive their fee, and that the audit fee was $17,000.

Public Works Director Henne conunented that the DOC fee is $66,000.

Mr. Greenwood remarked that the Regional Supervisor has indicated that they would not take the
money.

Council Member Hemey wondered if they could just spend the grant money for what it would cover, or
if they were obligated to spend the additional funds if awarded the grant.

Page 3 Selah City Council Minutes 9/9/2014



Mr. Greenwood stated that they would apply for the grant on this specific project,and they would
recalculate if the City changed the scope ofthe project. He noted that the decision is based on energy
savings; thesemeasures save over $71,000 per year in energy costs.

Council Member Tiemey asked if they would have to go out for bonds to take care ofthis.

Public WorksDirector Henne replied that the money will come through energy savings.

CouncilMemberTiemey inquiredabout the sourceofthe upfrontexpenditure to make the necessary
improvements.

Mr. Greenwood remarked that most cities finance through the State Treasurer's local loan program.

Council Member Tiemey wondered if it would count against the City's bond indebtedness.

Public WorksDirector Henne responded in the negative, saying that we can apply and ifthey tum us
down we can deny the program.

City Administrator Kelly said that, while he doesn't know if it goes against the bond indebtedness, they
would be saving $70,000 annually to apply to the $90,000 payment, and that they are going to replace
the equipment whether they go through the program or spend all out ofpocket.

Council Member Sample observed that the Resolution says it is for City-wide energy improvements, and
asked what else there was aside from the Wastewater Treatment Plant.

Public Works Director Henne replied that there are nine projects in total, which are mostly at the
Wastewater Treatment Plant, adding that there were more but they opted not to include some of them.

City Administrator Kelly commented that changing the lights to LED will result in a significant amount
ofsavings.

Police ChiefHayes wondered if the LEDs are brighter and would last longer.

Public Works Director Henne responded that they will last longer, they are a different kind of light, a
whiter light.

Police ChiefHayes stated that it will be good for safety.

Council Member Schmid moved, and Council Member Fincb seconded, to Approve the Resolution
Authorizing the Mayor to sign a Funding Application to obtain a grant for City-wide enei^
improvements. Roll was called: Council Member Tierney - yes; Council Member Smeback - yes;
Council Member Schmid —yes; Council Member Finch—yes; CouncU Member Sample - yes;
Council Member Williams - yes. By voice vote, approval was unanimous.

2. Resolution Approving and Accepting Final Plat No. 912.63.07-01, "Fremont Heights',
and Authorizing the Mayor to Sign the Final Plat

Page 4 Selah City Council Minutes 9/9/2014



Community Planner Davison addressed M - 2. He gavea briefsynopsis of the plat from when the
preliminary platwasapproved to present day, adding that there is onedemonstration home currently on
the property that was constructed by the ovwier. He requested that Council approve the final plat so that
the owner can record it and start selling off the lots.

Council Member Finch asked how he arrived at the figure for the corporate bond.

Community PlannerDavison responded that the pricecame fix)m a cost estimate ofproject; Huibregtse,
Louman Associates, Inc. reviewed the project, and it was also reviewed in-house. He stated that City
Ordinance requires a bond that is fifteen percent ofthe total value.

Public Works Director Heime commented that they have been waiting to do the hydro-seed per the
request ofPublic Works, as it would have died if they had proceeded with it a couple months ago.

Council Member Sample wondered if it was possible to see the plat.

Community Planner Davison gave him the plat map to review.

Council Member Sample observed that there is a time limit on preliminary plats.

Community Planner Davison replied in the affirmative, saying that it is seven years.

Council Member Sample inquired if they are within that seven year limit.

Community Planner Davison responded that they have a few months to play with, adding that the State
approved an extension oftime to record final plats to ten years, although Selah hasn't done that yet.

Public Works Director Henne noted that he and Community Planner Davison reviewed the plat because
some details have over seven years.

Council Member Sample remarked that he road going through the plat becomes Naches Avenue.

Community Planner Davison replied in the affirmative, noting that it ties in with Heritage Hills Drive.

Public Works Director Henne commented that they changed the street name at 13"' because the owner
didn't want Heritage Hills Drive in their plat.

Community Planner Davison stated that one house that will now have the Naches Avenue address in
place ofHeritage Hills.

Council Member Sample had a question regarding stop signs in that area, saying that a lot ofpeople
aren't happy with the new stop signs on bodi sides. He wondered why they were so close to each other.

Page 5 Selah City Council Minutes 9/9/2014



Public Works Director Henna responded thattheoneat thebottom of thehill was placed there imder a
directive from the former administration, while the other two were from the complaints ofpeople in the
neighborhood. Henoted that they may opt to eliminate theoneon 14th & Cedar.

Council MemberSamplesaid that it would make sense to eliminate it.

Coimcil MemberWilliamsinquiredabout the drainage facilities.

Public Works Director Henne replied that storm drainage is keptonsite; theyare usingretention basins
and the water is going into perforated pipes.

Council Member Williams asked if it would all to stay up within the plat.

PublicWorks DirectorHenneresponded in the affirmative, adding that the engineer said that when he
stamped the plans.

Council Member )A^lliams wondered ifhe had reviewed all the conditions ofapproval.

Public WorksDirector Henne replied that he and Community Planner Davison went through all of the
recommendations and conditions to make sure they were met.

Council Member Williams inquired if they would be hydro-seedingover the entire plat.

Public Works Director Henne responded that they are doing it over the steep banks, at an amount of 100
lbs. per acre as recommended by the State.

Coimcil Member Williams asked about the percentage ofgrade.

Public Works Director Henne replied that they are two to twenty slopes.

Council Member Williams wondered if it met the Critical Area Ordinance requirements.

Public Works Director Henne responded that it exceeds them, noting that the plat was changed and
updated from what was approved seven years ago.

Council Member Williams had some concerns about drainage as it has been an issue in other areas.

Public Works Director Henne stated that it was done by a professional engineer, and built in accordance
with those plans & specifications.

Council Member Williams inquired if it would have retaining walls and concrete blocks, similar to that
further up in Heritage Hills.

Public Works Director Henne replied that those were done by private homeowners.

Mayor Gawlik added that it is also an erosion control step.

Page 6 Selah City Council Minutes 9/9/2014



Public Works Director Henne agreed.

Council Member Smeback moved, and Council Member Tiemey seconded, to Approve the
Resolution Approving and Accepting Final Plat No. 912.63.07-01, '^Fremont Heights', and
Authorizing the Mayor to Sign the Final Plat. Roll was called: Council Member Tiemey —yes;
Council Member Smeback - yes; Council Member Schmid - yes; Council Member Tiemey - yes;
Council Member Sample - yes; Council Member Williams - yes. By voice vote, approval was
unanimous.

N. Ordinances None

O. Communications

1. Oral

Mayor Gawlikopened the meeting. Seeingno one rise to speak, he then closed the meeting.

P. Reports/Announcements

1. Mayor

Mayor Gawlik said that a refmance of the Marudo property debt was discussed at the recent Council
Retreat, as the current rate would save taxpayers approximately twenty-seven thousand annually for the
life ofthe loan. He reminded everyone about the Welcome Home Veterans event taking place this
Saturday from 10:00am to 5:00pm at Wixson Park, encouraging all to attend. He stated that he had the
pleasure ofmeeting the commanding officer of the Japanese forces the previous week, and noted that
many oftheir troops would be participating in the Army Base Race.

2. Council Members

Council Member Finch had no report.

Council Member Sample noted that there is a Selah Chamber board meeting tomorrow. He stated that he
thought that Mayor Gawlik and City Administrator Kelly did a good job at the retreat, and that he
learned a lot that he didn't know. He expressed his support for the revision ofthe Municipal Code,
suggesting that it be made as practical as possible.

Council Member Hemey had no report, but commented that he enjoyed the retreat.

Council Member Smeback had no report, adding that he also enjoyed the retreat and felt they
accomplished a lot.

Council Member Williams echoed the comments about the retreat, adding her thanks for the time to talk
with City staff.

Page 7 Sclah City Council Minutes 9/9/2014



Council Member Schmid had no report.

3. Departmental

Police Chief Hayes no report;

Public Works Director Henne commented that he heard they were hosting a workshop for the
Department ofFish and Wildlife.

Police ChiefHayes responded that he allows them to use their meeting room.

Public Works Director Henne noted that the meeting is to discuss the newest regulations.

Council Member Hemey added that they will also be addressing the issue ofmaking the Naches River a
catch and release site.

Fire Chief Hanna said that some ofthe career staffwent over to the library last week to do some public
education; they had forty kids and forty adults attend, and will probably do a few more of those
throughout the year. He remarked that they had volunteers running the aid station at the SkeweredApple
BBQ over the weekend, from gate open to gate close, and that they will also be down at Wixson Park for
the Welcome Home Veterans event on the 13th to do a demonstration with the jaws of life. He noted that
the Amity club members will be coming to the station tonight for a tour and to get a feel for what the
Fire Department does. He stated that they will be participating, along with the other city and district fire
departments, with the running ofa booth at the fairgrounds this year, both to promote public education
and as a recruitment opportunity.

Recreation Manager Brown said that the Welcome Home Veterans event will be held on Saturday at
Wixson Park, and that they will have a rock climbing wall, a petting zoo, and information for veterans.
He remarked that the Army Base Race is on the 20th, and that the Japanese Army has registered 220
soldiers from their army. He estimated that the total number of runners will be close to 600.

Council Member Williams commented that he did a good job with the pie eating contest.

CommunityPlanner Davison thanked the Council for approving the final plat. He gave a briefupdate on
various projects around town and items that vrill go before the Planning Commission or the Hearing
Examiner in the next couple ofmonths.

Council Member Williams asked about the scraping and gravel by North Park Lodge.

Community Planner Davison replied that it is a staging area for the water pipe project.

Public Works Director Henne thanked the Council for approving his two items, adding that other
jurisdictions he has talked with that have been through the process have had good success with it.

Mayor Gawlik asked when they would see windmills all over town.

Page 8 Selah City Council Minutes 9/9/2014



Public Works Director Henne responded that one project was looking at the installation of solarpanels
down at pre-treatment.

City Administrator Kelly commented that the State would payforthe solar panels but theCity would
have to maintain them.

Public Works Director Henne added that a large area would be needed for the panels.

CouncilMember Tiemeyremarked that one would thinka windmill wouldprovide sufficient powerto
the treatment plant and the Public Worksfacility.

PublicWorks DirectorHennerepliedthat no one has ever approached him about that.

Council Member Schmid commented that someone had a couple out in the Naches Heights area, but
there wasn't enough wind to generate electricity; it has to be sustained wind.

Public WorksDirector Henne gave a briefupdate on both the water improvementproject and the
Wemex Loop project. He added that the crew will either sweep or water the marathon route, and that
they've asked the State about cleaning up their portion as well.

Cotmcil MemberSchmidcomplimented him and his crew on the job they done on HomeAvenue and
Pear Avenue, saying that he drove it and it was nice to drive on a new street.

Public Works Director Henne remarked that the Department of Energy seems to have money to loan or
grant at present, although monies for road improvementsmay be tight for awhile. He said that he took
Building Inspector/CodeEnforcementOfficer Brons, Code Enforcement Officer Knox and Management
Assistant/Permit Technician Graziano to a Low Impact Development (LID) meeting, and gave a brief
summary ofsome ofthe changes that have to be implemented by August 2016.

Coimcil Member Williams wondered why the LID would be needed for rural communities like ours.

Public WorksDirector Herme responded that it is currently for communities of 10,000or more, which
means that most communities are out, adding that this will change over time with the push to avoid an
increase in impervious surfaces.

CityAdministrator Kelly talked brieflyabout the possibilityofconstructing a steel buildingas the new
municipal building to house City Hall and the Police Station.

City Attorney Noe had no report.

4. Boards None

Q. Executive Session None

R. Adjournment

Page 9 Selah City Council Minutes 9/9/2014



Council Member Tiemey moved, and Council Member Smeback seconded, tbat the meeting be
adjourned. By voice vote, approval was unanimous.

The meeting adjourned at 5:14pm.

EXCUSED

Paul Overby, Coimcil Member

Dave Smeback, Council Member

Brooke Finch, Council Member

Jane Williams, Council Member

ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

John Gawlik, Mayor

John Tiemey, Council Member

Allen Schmid, Coimcil Member

Roy Sample, Council Member

Page 10 Selah City Council Minutes 9/9/2014



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

9/23/2014 I - 2

Title: Claims & Payroll

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Dale Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: See Check Registers

Funding Source: Various. See Check Registers.

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of Claims & Payroll as listed on Check Registers.

Background / Findings & Facts:

See Check Registers.

Recommended Motion:

Motion to Approve the Consent Agenda as read. (This item is part of the
Consent Agenda)



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

9/23/2014 J-1

Title: Public Hearing on Revenue Sources for the 2015 Budget

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Dale Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

Action Requested: Informational - No action

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: See attached

Funding Source: see attached

Staff Recommendation:

Hold Public Hearing.

Background / Findings & Facts:

Discuss potential revenue sources for the 2015 Budget.

Recommended Motion:

N/A



2014 PROPERTY TAX
Budget $1,436,411 $993,411

69.2%

$284,000
19.8%

$142,000
9.9%

$17,000
1.2%

$108,214 $50,000
EMS

Fire Control

103

311.10.10

Excise

Capital Improv
301

318.34

Totals

Received

General Fund

001

311.10

Fire Control

103

311.10

City Street
110

311.10

Library
120

311.10201 3 2014

% YTD YTD % YTD YTD Month

0.5% $7,275 0.2% $2,658 Jan $2,658.00 1,838.25 525.53 262.76 31.46 $549.07 $1,831.14 $5,038.21

0.9% 13,001 0.5% 6,842 Feb 4,184.12 2,893.71 827.26 413.63 49.52 271.19 3,112.05 7,567.36

5.0% 71,319 2.6% 37,710 Mar 30,868.37 21,348.33 6,103.14 3,051.57 365.33 3,720.50 2,956.38 37,545.25

9.7% 139.477 7.8% 111,480 Apr 73,769.66 51,018.54 14,585.37 7,292.68 873.07 6,157.11 4,007.89 83,934.66

48.6% 698,280 50.5% 724,800 May 613,319.54 424,167.16 121,262.47 60,631.24 7,258.67 43,856.55 3,125.00 660,301.09

53.2% 764,657 53.5% 768,531 Jun 43,731.28 30,244.23 8,646.33 4,323.16 517.56 6,377.62 5,566.10 55,675.01

53.5% 767,931 54.4% 781,239 Jul 12,707.57 8,788.46 2,512.48 1,256.24 150.39 791.11 6,340.33 19,839.01

54.3% 779,819 54.7% 785,426 Aug 4,187.89 2,896.31 828.01 414.00 49.56 478.96 5,680.11 10,346.96

55.5% 797,926 55.4% 795,802 Sep 10,375.87 7,175.87 2,051.47 1,025.73 122.80 589.97 6,855.02 17,820.86

58.7% 842,734 Oct 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

94.8% 1,362,008 Nov 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

97.5% 1,401,074 Dec 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

$795,602.30 $550,370.87 $157,342.05 $78,671.03 $9,418.36 $62,792.08 $39,474.02 $898,068.41

% of Budget 55% 55% 55% 55% 58% 79%



2014 Sales Tax

Sales Tax Transit

Public

Safety

Hotel

Motel TPA

2014

General Fund

001.098.313.11

70.053%

$917,000

city Street
110.042.313.11

7.869%

$103,000

Civic Center

118.075.313.11

0.840%

$11,000

CE Bld9 Prop
Reserve

310.OSS.313.11

21.238%

$278,000

Transit

119.047.313.21

$385,000

General Fund

001.000.21

313,15

$200,000

Tourism

121.000.57

313.31

$13,000

Tourism

121.000.S7

345.60

$12,0002013 Budget $1,309,000 Sales Tax

Receivedytd % YTD YTD Month

$68,309 6.2% $81,150 January $81,149.81 $56,848.26 $6,385.36 $681.93 $17,234.26 $28,643.63 $13,343.10 $570.82 $674.00

146,038 13.5% 176,215 February 95,065.31 $66,596.55 $7,480.31 $798.87 $20,189.58 33,553.29 $16,162.07 $543.69 $170.00

203,300 20.8% 272,620 March 96,404.64 $67,534.80 $7,585.70 $810.12 $20,474.02 34,025.10 $12,089.90 $42.89 $486.00

267,914 27.6% 361,287 April 88,667.34 $62,114.56 $6,976.88 $745.10 $18,830.80 31,295.23 $12,584.56 $549.89 $618.00

344,269 36.2% 474,360 May 113,072.67 $79,211.33 $8,897.24 $950.19 $24,013.91 39,720.00 $15,311.11 $1,018.57 $1,122.00

420,077 44.9% 588,114 June 113,754.72 $79,689.13 $8,950.91 $955.92 $24,158.76 40,148.56 $14,640.28 $984.92 $1,106.00

489,891 54.0% 707,458 July 119,343.19 $83,604.05 $9,390.64 $1,002.88 $25,345.61 42,120.89 $15,022.46 $85.30 $0.00

572,428 63.9% 836,931 August 129,473.37 $90,700.60 $10,187.74 $1,088.01 $27,497.02 45,696.71 $16,995.10 $1,381.45 $1,434.00

660,785 September $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

744,709 October $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

825,398 November $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

922,352 December $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

TOTALS $836,931.05 $586,299.29 $65,854.77 $7,033.03 $177,743.95 $295,203.41 $116,148.58 $5,177.53 $5,610.00



COMPARISON OF EXTERNAL UTILITY TAX REVENUE

Recvd

Cascade

Gas Charter

EIITel

Fairpoint PPL Cingular
Sprint
Nextel US Cell Verizon Tmobile

Monthly
Total YTD

80,000 60,000 43,000 285,000 2013 Budget $ 608,000

January-13 17,405 15,364 3,074 69,294 4,379 977 1,848 3,758 290 116,390 116,390

February-13 5,273 3,240 3,974 1,004 1,777 3,769 328 19,365 135,755

March-13 5,389 3,304 3,915 1,006 1,774 3,514 319 19,220 154,975

April-13 30,507 5,454 3,108 92,157 4,119 1,098 1,732 3,450 372 141,997 296,972

Mav-13 5,442 3,090 3,978 848 1,760 3,448 335 18,902 315,874

June-13 5,396 3,131 4,228 959 1,701 3,436 314 19,165 335,039

Julv-13 5,387 3,081 62,962 3,480 1,040 1,758 3,440 328 81,475 416,514

August-13 13,488 5,369 3,101 3,844 910 1,237 3,456 276 31,683 448,198

September-13 5,377 3,175 4,091 927 606 3,515 327 18,017 466,215

October-13 6,436 5,419 3,053 75,174 3,712 1,024 3,412 3,698 402 102,329 568,544

Novennber-13 5,506 3,094 3,478 1,054 2,458 3,711 308 19,608 588,152

December-13 5,516 3,009 3,942 995 1,559 3,717 18,738 606,890

Total 67,837 74,891 37,461 299,587 47,139 11,841 21,622 42,912 3,599 606,890

+1- 2012 ($9,843) $15,754 ($2,154) $6,464 $4,308 ($18) ($347) ($3,506) $142 $10,800

Januarv-14 23,748 5,562 3,003 76,012 4,143 1,032 2,594 3,709 1 119,804 119,804

Februarv-14 5,965 2,966 3,976 1,043 1,930 3,705 719 20,305 140,109

March-14 5,668 3,202 3,420 981 1,317 3,705 343 18,636 158,745

Aprll-14 38,970 5,973 2,966 98,967 3,443 1,028 2,355 3,743 362 157,808 316,553

May-14 5,841 2,896 3,237 997 1,184 3,899 345 18,399 334,952

June-14 5,618 2,931 3,007 907 2,231 3,694 365 18,753 353,705

July-14 14,553 5,706 2,833 64,653 2,861 794 1,047 3,628 331 96,406 450,111

August-14 5,678 2,867 3,003 861 1,834 3,769 1 18,014 468,125

September-14 2,832 2,832 470,957

October-14 0 470,957

November-14 0 470,957

December-14 0 470,957

Total 77.271 46.012 26,495 239.632 27.091 7.643 14.492 29,853 2,468 470.957

2013 $15,870 ($7,062) $4,541 $15,218 ($4,826) ($200) $905 $1.582 ($94) $25,935+1-



W-S-G Utility Tax

Monthly YTD

13-Jan $66,964 $66,964

13-Feb 65,345 132,309

13-Mar 62,953 195,262

13-Apr 61,758 257,019

13-May 71,918 328,937

13-Jun 72,940 401,877

13-Jul 82,175 484,052

13-Aug 83,301 567,353

13-Sep 82,262 649,615

13-Oct 82,359 731,974

13-Nov 70,770 802,744

13-Dec 69,415 872,159

Monthly Average $72,680

Monthly YTD

14-Jan $65,657 $65,657

14-Feb 69,004 134,660

14-Mar 65,081 199,741

14-Apr 67,823 267,564

14-May 69,095 336,659

14-Jun 78,313 414,972

14-Jul 82,968 497,940

14-Aug 89,428 587,368

14-Sep

14-Oct

14-Nov

14-Dec

$73,421



CITY OF SELAH
PRELIMINARY 2015 BUDGET

PROPERTY TAXES

2015

Budget
% 2014

Budget

2014

Actual

Thru Sept
% 2013

Actual
% 2012

Actual
%

Unrestricted Pronertv Taxes

001 General Fund $1,006,437 69% $993,411 $550,371 69% $963,421 69% $957,450 69%

103 Fire Control 289,680 20% 284,000 157,342 20% 280,966 20% 275,150 20%

110 City Street 144,840 10% 142,000 78,671 10% 140,825 10% 137,000 10%

120 Library 17,000 1% 17,000 9,418 1% 17,000 1% 15,000 1%

Total Unrestricted Prop. Taxes $1,457,957 100% $1,436,411 $795,802 100% $1,402,212 100% $1,384,600 100%

Levy Rate per Thousand $2.53 $2.50 $2.50

Restricted Pronertv Taxes

103 Fire Control - EMS $106,801 $io8,i14 $62,792 $87,897 $86,579

231 Fire Station Bond Redem.

Total Restricted Property Taxes $106,801 $108,214 $62,792 $87,897 $86,579

Levy Rate per Thousand EMS
Bond

0.21



Sales Taxes

001 General Fund

110 City Street
118 Civic Center

310 CE BIdg/Prop Reserve

Total Sales Taxes

.3% Public Safety

001 General Fund - Police

.3% Transit

119 Transit

.1% Criminal Justice

001 General Fund - Police

Lodging

121 Tourism - Hotel/Motel

121 Tourism - Tourist Promo

CITY OF SELAH

PRELIMINARY 2015 BUDGET
SALES TAXES

2015

Budget
% 2014

Budget

2014

Actual

Thru Aug
% 2013

Actual

% 2012

Actual
%

$785,000 87.3% $917,000 $586,299 70.1% $802,907 87.0% $726,750 86.0%

103,000 11.5% 103,000 65,855 7.9% 102,098 11.1% 101,000 11.9%

11,000 1.2% 11,000 7,033 0.8% 17,347 1.9% 17,500 2.1%

0 0.0% 278,000 177,744 21.2%

$899,000 100% $1,309,000 $836,931 100% $922,352 100% $845,250 100%

$165,000 $200,000 $116,149 $165,420 $152,180

$325,000 $385,000 $295,203 $325,537 $298,215

$90,000 $100,000 $63,457 $89,885 $82,688

$12,000 $13,000 $5,178 $13,332 $11,072
$13,000 $12,000 $5,610 $14,866 $11,983



CITY OF SELAH
FUND: 001 GENERAL FUND - NON-DEPARTMENTAL

REVENUES

316.41 Electric Utility Occup. Tax

316.43 Gas Utility Occup. Tax

316.46 Cable Utility Occup. Tax

316.47 Telephone Utility Occup. Tax

316.47.10 Cellular Utility Occup. Tax

316.48 W-S-G UtilityTax

2015

Budget
Estimate

Original
2014

Budget

Amended

2014

Budget

2014

Actual

Thru July
2013

Actual

2012

Actual

320,000 295,000 295,000 239,632 299,587 293,124

85,000 67,000 67,000 77,271 67,837 77,681

70,000 62,000 62,000 41,099 76,174 59,975

42,000 42,000 42,000 23,563 42,879 43,422

125,000 138,000 138,000 72,941 128,328 131,042

906,000 881,181 881,181 497,940 872,159 266,316

FUND: 103 FIRE CONTROL

316.48 W-S-G UtilityTax 123,600

342.20 Fire Dist. No. 2 582,793 413,887 413,887 137,824 409,020 401,333

316.48 W-S-G UtilityTax

342.20 Fire Dist. No. 2

316.48 W-S-G UtilityTax

Fund 150 Fire Equip. Reserve

92,400

127,600

Fund 170 CE Equip Reserve

~ 56.0001 I



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

9/23/2014 K-1

Title: Creation of a New Position

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

Froni: David Kelly, City Administrator

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: $19,500 (2014), $78,000 (2015), this is Salary and Benefits

Funding Source: Current Expense 58%, Fire 5%, Street 2%, Transit 5%,

Water 10%, Sewer 10%, Garbage 5%. These are the same fund allocations
used for the City Administrator position.

Staff Recommendation:

Recommend approval of adding a position for writing grants and managing
projects for all City departments.

Background / Findings & Facts:

The City Council and Mayor had retreat that was held on September 4, to
discuss the future direction of the City. Many projects were identified to be
completed over the next several years, some of which were:

1. Building a new City Hall/Police Station/Library
a. Finding grant monies to help fund this project

2. Remodeling and or rebuilding the Civic Center
a. Finding grant monies to help fund this project



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

3. Completing Volunteer Park (previously known as North Park), which we

have owned and have not developed for about the last 50 years.

a. Managing the grant we are about to receive of $375,000
b. Help generate about $200,000 in matching funds to complete the

project.

4. Assisting the Selah Downtown Association get off the ground. This will

help this group receive about $133,000 per year of new money to
beautify the City.

5. Work with the Selah Park and Recreation Service Area Board to develop
viable options for consideration of continuing our City Pool into the
future.

a. Find grant monies to help fund this project

Because of the list of projects above, the City Council and Mayor expressed
their desire to create a new position to help see these projects through to
completion. The position will be titled Assistant to the City Administrator. A
job description has been attached.

Recommended Motion:

I move to approve adding an Assistant to the City Administrator position for
writing grants and managing projects for all City departments.



CITYOFSELAH

ASSISTANT TO THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR

Class specifications areintended to present a descriptive list ofthe range ofdutiespeiformed by employees in the
class. Specifications are not intended toreflect allduties performed within thejob.

DEFINITION

Responsible forproviding highly responsible staffassistance to theCityAdministrator bymanaging projects in
Human Resources, grantwriting/management, and facility planning and building.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED
Undergeneral supervision of the CityAdministrator.
Generally none. May supervise part-time or temporary staff as assigned.

ESSENTIAL AND MARGINAL FUNCTION STATEMENTS;
Essential responsibilities anddutiesmayinclude, butare not limited to, thefollowing:

Essential Functions;

Review, interpret, develop, modify, and implement City policiesand their application to specific
situationsin all departments; and resolveconflicts involvinginterpretation ofsuch policies.

1. Findgrant opportunities, complete the applications andmonitor themthrough the completion of the
project.

2. Lead the process for the Cityof developing options fora newpool facility, from finding financing to
publicmeetings and deciding howto explainthe optionsto the community.

3. Work with Selah Park & Recreation Service Area Board, Chamber ofCommerce, Selah Downtown
Association, Selah Parks Foundation, and other special interest groups.

4. Write reports,conductanalyses, and developrecommendations concerningpolicy issuesand program
operations for the City Administratorand City Council.

5. Coordinate reports and meetings that involve variousCitydepartments and staffmembers on behalfof the
City Administrator.

6. Undertake special studies/projects relating to the CityAdministration function.
7. Review and evaluate city-wide employee performanceevaluations and make recommendationto the City

Administrator on how to improve where needed.
8. Assist the City Administrator in preparing and monitoring all ofthe City's budgets.

PERIPHERAL DUTIES;

Other duties as assigned.

NECESSARY KNOWLEDGE. SKILLS AND ABILITIES:

• Understanding and working knowledge ofoperational characteristics, services, and activities ofa
comprehensive urban planning program.

• Working knowledge and experience with land use, growth management and environmental practices and
with related City, State, Federal laws, rules, ordinances, guidelines, or principles.

• Working knowledgeand experience with site planningand urban plan design review/evaluationand
processing ofpermits.

• Working knowledgeand experiencewith project managementand studies includingresearch methods,
statistical analysis, technical report writing, and presentation techniques.



• Working knowledgeand experiencewith providing technical and professionalstaffsupport to elected
policy makers, commissions, and boards.

• Workingknowledge and experiencewith developmentand monitoringofbudgets and expenditures.
• Understand, interpret,explain and apply City, State and Federal laws and ensure compliancewhh the

City's urban planning goals, vision policies and practices, reporting and record keeping.
• Explain policies and procedures and respond appropriately to questions or concerns from other

employees,departments. City management, elected officials, citizens, conununity groups, external third
parties, otherjurisdictions and the general public.

• Read and understand reference and legal materials such as the Local Government Code and other State
statutes.

• Demonstrate ability to avoid any conflict or appearance ofconflict of interest in the performance ofduties
and responsibilities to include election related items.

• Maintain a general knowledge ofmunicipal laws, codes, policies and guidelines and maintain a
comprehensiveknowledgeof laws, codes, policies and guidelines applicable to the job responsibilities.

• Demonstrate an ability to present information in public forums in a professionalmanner.
• Demonstratean ability to performa wide variety ofduties and responsibilitieswith accuracy and speed

under the pressureoftime- sensitive deadlines.

TOOLS & EQUIPMENT USED;

• Use personal computer, utilizing word-processing, spread sheet and database programs or other
application software as required for the position.

• Use and operate general office equipment including a calculator, computer, printer, phone, fax, and
copier.

QUALIFICATIONS

Education, Experience, and Training Guidelines

Anycombination ofexperienceand training that wouldlikelyprovide the required knowledge and abilities is
qualifying. A typical way to obtain the knowledgeand abilities would be:

Education and Experience;

• Bachelor's degree (Master's degree preferred) in urban design, urban planning, public
administration, or a closely related field;

• or a Law degree and three years progressive experience in addressing growth management or
land use, including three years at the policy development level, preferably in a local government
environment working wiA elected policy makers, commissions and boards;

• or an equivalentcombination ofeducation and experience enabling the incumbentto perform the
essential functions ofthe position may be considered

License or certificate;

• Possession ofvalid Washington State Driver's License

WORKING CONDITIONS

Environmental Conditions;

The work environment characteristics described here are representative ofthose an employee encounters while
performing the essential functions ofthis job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals
with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

The noise level in the woik environment is usually quiet.

Physical Conditions!



The physical demands described here are representative ofthose thatmust bemet byanemployee to successfully
perform theessential functions of this job.Reasonable accommodations may bemade toenable individuals with
disabilitiesto performthe essentialfunctions.

While performing theduties of thisjob, theemployee is frequently required to sit andtalkor hear. Theemployee
is occasionally required to walk; usehands to finger, handle, oroperate objects, tools, or controls; andreach with
hands and arms.

Theemployee mustoccasionally lift and/or move upto 25 pounds. Specific vision abilities required by thisjob
includeclose vision and the ability to adjust focus.

Workin this class is typically performed in an officeenvironment and mayoccasionally conductsitevisits at
various locations. Operationofmotor vehicle, occasional travel outside ofthe City and attendance at meetingsor
activities outsideofnormal working hours is also required. Office environment typically requires reaching,
fingering, grasping, talking, hearing, seeing, and repetitive motions. Also mayrequireperiods ofsittingwith
attention at a computer keyboard and videodisplayterminal, lightliftingup to 30 pounds, reaching for files, and
accuracy in recording information.

Frequentinterruptions ofwork may be experiencedby others seeking information in personor by phone or by
changing priorities in the office. On occasion maydeal with distraught or difficultindividuals.

Note:

1. Any combinationofeducation and experience may be substituted, so long as it provides the
desired skills, knowledge and abilities to perform the essential functions ofthe job.

2. All requirementsare subject to possible modificationto reasonablyaccommodate individuals
with disabilities. However, some requirements may exclude individuals who pose a direct
threat or significant risk to the health and safety ofthemselvesor other employees.

3. While requirements may be representative of minimum levels ofknowledge, skills and
abilities to perform this job successfully, the employee will possess the abilities or aptitudes
to perform each duty proficiently.

4. This job description in no way implies that these are the only duties to be performed.
Employeesoccupying the position will be requiredto follow any other job-related
instructions and to perform any other job related duties requested by their supervisor.

I have read and understand this class description.

Signature Date



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

9/23/2014 L-1

Title: Selah Parks & Recreation Program/Activity Price Increase Proposal

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Charlie Brown, Recreation Manager

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Approval

Fiscal Impact: Increased revenue

Funding Source: Fund 001

Staff Recommendation:

1 recommend that the department be allowed to adjust our prices of our

programs and rentals.

Background / Findings & Facts:

In the past we have charged Resident / School District / Non-Resident fees. The

problem is that there is no way to enforce this online. All the software

registration programs only allow for resident / non-resident, so we lose money
on anyone that should have paid the third fee. What we are proposing is to go
to a two price structure and have adjusted the prices to make them reasonable.
We are also suggesting that with park rentals we allow people to rent by the
hour with a two hour minimum. We have always had predetermined blocks of
time and not everyone wants that, some groups what four hours and had to pay
for two time periods or they would rent one and then call and verily that
nobody else had rented after them and then just stay.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Recommended Motion:

I recommend that we approve the new price structure for the Parks and

Recreation Department.

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City

Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date: Action Taken:

8/26/2014 Presented proposal to Council. Council voted to have fees
adjusted and brought before them at a later time.

Ciick here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date, Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



Numbers of Registration by Location

Old vs New (Actual Paid)

Season 1 Season 2 YearTotal

98942 *344 •270 •63 •88 '292

98901 37 24 12 6 26

Naches "47 ••35 0 0 0

Yakima "54 "45 12 3 "24

Other ••9 "6 5 0 ••8

TOTAL KIDS 491 380 97 97 350

•City Res and SSD, No

way to separate

•City Res and SSD, No

way to separate

•City Res and SSO, No

way to separate

•City Res and SSD. No

way to separate

•City Res and SSD, No

way to separate

"74 kids paid SSD

Price because coach

took care of

paperwork

"74 kids paid SSD

Price because coach

took care of

paperwork

••10 kids paid SSD

price because coach

took care of the

paperwork

2 Kids paid Non-Res

price

5 Kidspaid Non-Res

price

Old vs New Prices (Actual Paid)

Season 1 Season 2 YearTotal

Old Soccer Pricet

Resident
948.52 $48.52 $97.04

Old Soccer Prices Non-

Resldent
$59.80 $59.80 S119.60

New Soccer Prices

Resident
S50.00 $35.00 S85.00

New Soccer Prices

Non-Resident
$65.00 $50.00 $115.00

Old Basketball

Resident
S4S.52 $48.52

Old Basketball

Non-Resldent
$59.80 S59.80

New Basketball

Resident
S50.00 $51.00

New Basketball

Non-Resident
$65.00 $64.00

Old Flag Football

Resident
S48.52 $48.52

Old Flag Football Non-

Resldent
$59.80 $59.80

New Flag Football

Resident
$50.00 $51.00

New Flag Football Non

Resident
$65.00 564.00

OldT-Ball Resident
$36.49 $36.49

OldT-Ball Non

Resident
$46.92 $46.92

New T-Ball Resident
S37.00 $38.00

New T-8all

Non-Resldent
$48.00 $49.00

Old Tiny Tots Resident
S36.49 $36.49 $72.98

Old Tiny Tots

Non-Resldent
$46.92 $46.92 $93.84

New Tiny Tots

Resident
S37.00 $37.00 $74.00

New Tiny Tots

Non-Resldent
$48.00 $48.00 S96.TO

Old Little Dribblers

Resident
$36.49 $36.49 $72.98

Old Uttle Dribblers

Non-Resldent
$46.92 $46.92 $93.84

New Little Dribblers

Resident
S37.00 S37.00 $74.00

New Uttle Dribblers

Non-Resldent
$48.00 $48.00 $96.00



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

9/23/2014 M-1

Title: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign An Updated Section 125

Cafeteria Plan

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Dale Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: The City and employees will continue to save payroll fringe
benefit costs (Social Security) and the employee will have reduced Federal

Income Tax on eligible voluntary insurance coverage paid by the employee.

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Approve Resolution.

Background / Findings & Facts:

In accordance with the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) the City is required to
maintain a Section 125 Cafeteria Plan in order to receive exemption from taxes
on eligible voluntary insurance coverage.

Recommended Motion:

I move to approve the Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign an updated

Section 125 Cafeteria Plan.



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN AN UPDATED

SECTION 125 CAFETERIA PLAN

WHEREAS, the City ofSelah wishes to continue to provide its employees with a Section 125
Cafeteria plan for health and disability premiums;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SELAH, WASHINGTON, that the Mayor be authorized to sign an updated Section 125
Cafeteria Plan and that the employees be provided with a copy ofthe summary description of
the Plan in the form ofthe Summary Plan Description, attached hereto.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON this 23"* day ofSeptember 2014.

ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert Noe, City Attorney

RESOLUTION NO.

John Gawlik, Mayor



CITY OF SELAH
PREMIUM ONLY PLAN DOCUMENT

SUMMARY PLAN DESCRIPTION



TABLE OF CONTENTS

I

ELIGIBILITY

1. When can I become a participant in the Plan? 1

2. What are the eligibility requirements for our Plan? 1

3. When is my entry date? 1

4. What must I do to enroll in the Plan? I

II

OPERATION

1. How does this Plan operate? 1

III

CONTRIBUTIONS

1. How much of my pay may the Employer redirect? I

2. What happens to contributions made to the Plan? 2

3. When must 1decide what insurance coverage I want? 2

4. When is the election period for our Plan? 2

5. May 1change my elections during the Plan Year? 2

6. May I make new elections in future Plan Years? 2

IV

BENEFITS

1. What insurance coverage may 1 purchase? 3

V

BENEFIT PAYMENTS

1. When will 1receive benefit payments? 3

2. Familyand Medical Leave Act (FMLA) 3

3. What happens if 1terminate employment? 3

4. Will my Social Security benefits be affected? 3

VI

HIGHLY COMPENSATED EMPLOYEES

I. Do limitationsapply to highly compensated employees? 3

VII

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT OUR PLAN

1. General Plan Information 4

2. EmployerInformation 4

3. Plan Administrator Information 4

4. Service of Legal Process 4

5. Type of Administration 4

VIII

ADDITIONAL PLAN INFORMATION

1. Insurance Procedures 4



IX

CONTINUATION COVERAGE RIGHTS UNDER COBRA

1. What is COBRA continuation coverage? 5

2. Who can become a Qualifled Beneficiary? 5

3. What is a Qualifying Event? 5

4. What factorsshould be considered when determiningto elect COBRAcontinuationcoverage? 6

5. What is the procedure for obtaining COBRA continuationcoverage? 6

6. What is the election period and how long must it last? 6

7. Is a covered Employeeor Qualified Beneficiary responsible for informingthe PlanAdministratorof the
occurrence ofa Qualifying Event? 7

8. Is a waiverbeforethe end of the election periodeffective to end a Qualified Beneficiary's electionrights? 7

9. Is COBRAcoverage available if a Qualified Beneficiaryhas other group health plan coverage or Medicare? 7

10. Whenmaya QualifiedBeneficiary's COBRAcontinuation coveragebe terminated? 8

11. Whatate the maximum coverageperiods for COBRAcontinuation coverage? 8

12. Under what circumstances can the maximumcoverageperiod be expanded? 9

13. Howdoesa QualifiedBeneficiary becomeentitled to a disabilityextension? 9

14. Does the Plan require payment for COBRAcontinuationcoverage? 9

15. Must the Plan allow payment for COBRAcontinuationcoverage to be made in monthly installments? 9

16. What is Timely Payment for COBRA continuationcoverage? 9

17. Must a Qualified Beneficiarybe given the right to enroll in a conversionhealth plan at the end of the maximum
coverage period for COBRA continuation coverage? 9

X

SUMMARY



CITYOFSELAH

PREMIUM ONLY PLAN DOCUMENT

INTRODUCTION

We have amended the "Premium Payment Plan" that we previouslyestablished for you and other eligible employees. Under this Plan,
you will be ^le to pay for insurance coverage that we make available to you with a portionofyour pay before Federal income or social
security taxes are withheld.

Read this SummaryPlan Description carefullyso that you understandthe provisionsof our amended Plan and the benefitsyou will
receive.This SPD describesthe Plan's benefitsand obligations as containedin the legal Plandocument, whichgoverns the operationof the
Plan. The Plan document is written in much more technical and precise language. If the non-technical languagein this SPD and the
technical, legal language of the Plandocumentconflict, the Plandocumentalwaysgoverns. Also, if there is a conflictbetween an insurance
contractandeither the Plan documentor this SummaryPlan Description, the insurance contractwill control. If you wish to receivea copy
ofthe legal Plandocument, pleasecontact the Administrator.

This SPD describes the current provisionsof the Plan which are designed to comply with applicable legal requirements.The Plan is
subject to federal laws, such as the Internal Revenue Code and other federal and state laws which may affect your rights. The provisionsof
the Plan are subject to revisiondue to a change in laws or due to pronouncementsby the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) or other federal
agencies. We may also amend or terminate this Plan. If the provisionsof the Plan that are described in this SPD change, we will notify you.

We have attempted to answer most of the questions you may have regarding your benefits in the Plan. If this SPD does not answer all
of your questions, please contact the Administrator(or other plan representative). The nameand address of the Administrator can be found
in the Article ofthis SPD entitled "General Information About the Plan."

I

ELIGIBILITY

1. When can I become a participant in the Flan?

Beforeyou become a Plan member (referred to in this SummaryPlan Descriptionas a "Participant"),there are certain rules whichyou
must satisfy. First, you must meet the eligibility requirementsand be an activeemployee. After that, the next step is to actually join the
Plan on the "entry date" that we have established for all employees. The "entry date" is defined in Question 3 below.

2. What are the eligibility requirements for our Pian?

You wili beeligible to join the Plan once you have satisfied the conditions for coverage under our group medical plan. Ofcourse, if
you were already a participant before this amendment, you will remain a participant

3. When is my entry date?

You can join the Pian on the same day you can enter our group medical plan.

4. What must I do to enroll in the Plan?

Before you can join the Plan, you must complete an application to participate in the Plan. You must also authorize us to set some of
your earnings aside for you in order to pay the insurance premiumsfor the coverageyou have elected.

II

OPERATION

1. How does this Plan operate?

Before the start ofeach Plan Year, you wili be able to elect to have some ofyour upcoming pay paid to the Plan. The money will be
used to imyfor insurancecoverage. The portionofyour pay that is contributed to pay the premiumexpense is not subject to Federal income
or SocialSecuritytaxes. In other words, the plan allowsyou to use tax-freedollarsto pay for insurancecoveragewhich you normallypay
for with out-of-pocket,taxable dollars. (See the Article entitled "General InformationAbout Our Plan" for the definitionof"Plan Year.")

III

CONTRIBUTIONS

1. How much of my pay may the Employer redirect?

Each year, you may elect to have us contributeon your behalf enough of your compensationto pay for the benefits that you elect
under the Plaa These amounts wili be deducted from your pay over the course of the year.

09/14



2. What happens to contributions made to the Plan?

Before eachPlan Year begins, youwilt select the insurance coverage you desire. Then, during eachpayperiod, thecontributions will
be used to paythe premium expensefor the insurance coverage you haveselected.

3. When must I decide what insurance coverage I want?

You are requiredby Federal law to decide before the Plan Year begins,during the election period (defined below).

4. When is the election period for our Plan?

Youwill makeyour initialelection on or beforeyour entrydate. (You shouldreviewSection I on Eligibilityto better understandthe
eligibilityrequirements and entrydate.) Then, for each following PlanYear,the electionperiod is established by the Administrator and
applieduniformly to all Participants. It will normallybe a periodof time priorto the beginningofeach PlanYear.The Administrator will
informyou each year about theelection period.(See the Ailicleentitled "General Information About Our Plan" for the definition of Plan
Year.)

5. May I change my elections during the Plan Year?

Generally, you caiuiot change the elections you have made after the beginning ofthe Plan Year. However, there are certain limited
situationswhen you can change your elections. You are permittedto change elections if you have a "change in status" and you make an
election change that isconsistent with the change in status. Currently, Federal law consists the following events tobe achange in status;

~ Marriage,divorce, death ofa spouse, legal separation or annulment;

- Change in the number of dependents, including birth, adoption, placement for adoption, or death of a dependent;

~ Anyof the following events for you, yourspouse or dependent: termination or commencement of employment, a strike or lockout,
commencementor return from an unpaid leave of absence, a change in worksite,or any other change in employment status that affects
eligibility for benefits;

•• One of your dependents satisfies or ceases to satisfy the requirements for coveragedue to change in age, student status,or any
similar circumstance; and

- A change in the place of residence ofyou, your spouse or dependent that would lead to a change in status, such as movingout of a
coveragearea for insurance.

There are detailed rules on when a change in election is deemed to be consistentwith a change in status. In addition, there are laws
thatgiveyourightsto changehealthcoverage foryou,yourspouse,or yourdependents. If youchangecoverage due to rights you have
under the law, then you can make a corresponding change in your elections under the Plan. If any ofthese conditions applyto you, you
should contad the Administrator.

If the cost of a benefit provided under the Plan increases or decreasesduring a Plan Year, then we will automaticallyincrease or
decrease,as the case may be, your salary redirection election. If the cost increasessignificantly,you will be permittedto either make
corresponding changes in yourpayments or revoke yourelection andobtaincoverage underanotherbenefitpackage optionwith similar
coverage,or revoke your election entirely.

If the coverage undera Benefit is significantly curtailed or ceasesduring a PlanYear,thenyou mayrevoke yourelections and electto
receive on a prospective basiscoverage underanotherplanwithsimilarcoverage. In addition, if we adda newcoverage optionor eliminate
an existingoption,you mayelect the newly-added option (or elect anotheroption if an option has beeneliminated) and make
corresponding election changes to other options providing similarcoverage. If you are nota Participant, youmayelect tojoin the Plaa
There are also certainsituations when you may be abie to change your electionson account ofa chmge under the plan of your spouse's,
formerspouse'sor dependent's employer.

6. May I make new elections in future Plan Years?

Yes, you may. For each new Plan Year, you may change the elections that you previouslymade. You may also choose not to
participate in the Planfor the upcoming Plan Year. If youdo not makenewelections duringthe electionperiodbefore a newPlanYear
begins,we willassumeyou want your elections for insuredbenefitsonly to remainthe same.

09/14



IV

BENEFITS

1. What insurance coverage may I purchase?

Under our Plan, you can purchase the following insurancecoverage;

~ Healthcarepremiumsunderour insuredgroup medical plaa

~ Our dental insurance plan.

- Our disability insuranceplan.

- Our cancer insuranceplan.

- Our vision insuranceplan.

Certainlimitsmayapply on the amountof coveragethat we obtainon jour behalf.The insurance contractswill normally control.

The Administrator mayterminateor modify Plan benefits at anytime,subjectto the provisions of any insurance contracts providing
benefitsdescribedabove. We will not be liable to you ifan insurancecompany fails to provide any of the benefits described above. Also,
your insurance willend whenyou leaveemployment, are no longereligibleunderthe termsof any insurance policies, or wheninsurance
terminates.

Any benefits to be provided by insurance will be provided only after (I) you have provided the Administrator the necessary
informationto apply for insurance, and (2) the insurance is in effect for you.

If you coveryour children up to age 26 under your insurance,you can pay for that coverage through the Plan.

V

BENEFIT PAYMENTS

1. When will I receive benefit payments?

The amount of pay you contribute to the Plan will be used to pay the premiumsfor the insurance coverage that is available.The
provisions ofthe insurance policies will control what benefits will be paid and when.

2. Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

If you take leaveunderthe Familyand MedicalLeaveAct,you may revokeor changeyourexistingelectionsfor health insurance. If your
coveragein thesebenefitsterminates, due to your revocationof the benefitwhileon leaveor due to your non-payment of contributions, you
willbe permitted to reinstatecoverage for the remaining partof the PlanYearuponyour retum.

If you continueyour coverageduringyour unpaid leave,you may pre-payfor the coverage, you may pay for your coverageon an after-tax
basis whileyou are on leave,or you and your Employermay arrangea schedule foryou to "catchup" your paymentswhenyou return.

3. What happens ifl terminate employment?

If you terminate employmentduring the Plan Year, your right to benefitswill be determined in the followingmanner:

(a) For healthbenefitcoverageon termination of employment, pleasesee the Articleentitled "Continuation Coverage RightsUnder
COBRA."

4. Will my Social Security benefits be affected?

Your Social Security benefits may be slightly reduced because \^en you receive tax-free benefits under our Plan, it reduces the
amount ofcontributions that you make to the Federal Social Security system as well as our contribution to Social Security on your belralf.

VI

HIGHLY COMPENSATED EMPLOYEES

I. Do limitations apply to highly compensated employees?

Under the Internal Revenue Code, highly compensatedemployees generallyare Participantsv^o are shareholders or highlypaid. You
will be notified by the Administratoreach Plan Year whether you are a highlycompensatedemployee.

09/14



If you are within these categories, the amount of contributionsand benefits for you may be limited so that the Plan as a whole does not
unfairly favor those who are highly paid, their spouses or their dependents.

Plan experience will dictate whether contribution limitationson highlycompensatedemployees will apply. You will be notifiedof
these limitations if you are affected.

VII

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT OUR PLAN

This Sectioncontains certain general informationwhich you may need to know about the Plan.

1. General Plan Information

City ofSelah Premium Only Plan Document is the name ofthe Plan.

Your Employerhas assigned Plan Number 520 to your Plan.

The provisionsof your amended Plan become effective on October 1st,2014. Your Plan was originallyeffective on October 1st, 2004.

Your Plan's records are maintainedon a twelve-monthperiodoftime. This is known as the Plan Year. The Plan Year begins on
October 1stand ends on September30th.

2. Employer Information

Your Employer'sname, address, and identificationnumberare;

CityofSeiah
I IS W Naches Avenue

Selah, Washington 98942
91-6001501

3. Plan Administrator Information

The name,address and business telephone number of your Plan's Administratorare:

CityofSeiah
115 W Naches Avenue

Selah, Washington98942
509-698-7334

The Administratorkeeps the records for the Plan and is responsiblefor the administrationof the Plaa The Administratorwill also
answer any questionsyou may have about our Plan. You may contact the Administratorfor any further informationabout the Plan.

4. Service of Legal Process

The name and address of the Plan's agent for service of legal process are:

CityofSeiah
115 W Naches Avenue

Selah, Washington98942

5. Type ofAdministration

The type of Administration is Insurer Administration.

VIII

ADDITIONAL PLAN INFORMATION

I. Insurance Procedures

Claims that are insured will be handled in accordance with procedurescontained in the insurancepolicies. All other general requests
should be directed to the Administrator ofour Plan.

09/14



IX

CONTINUATION COVERAGE RIGHTS UNDER COBRA

Underfederal law,the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Actof 1983(COBRA), certainemployees andtheir families
covered under health benefits under this Planwill beentitled to theopportunity to electa temporary extension of health coverage (called
"COBRA continuation coverage") where coverage under the Plan would otherwise end. This notice is intended to inform Plan Participants
andbeneficiaries, in summary fashion, of theirrights andobligations under thecontinuation coverage provisions of COBRA, as amended
andreflected in final andproposed regulations published bytheDepartment of theTreasury. Thisnotice is intended to reflect thelawand
does not grantor take awayany rights underthe law.

ThePlan Administrator or itsdesignee is responsible for administering COBRA continuation coverage. Complete instructions on
COBRA, as well aselection forms andother information, will beprovided bythePlan Administrator or itsdesignee to Plan Participants
who become Qualified Beneficiaries under COBRA. While thePlan itselfisnota group health plan, it does provide health benefits.
Whenever"Plan" is used in this section, it means any ofthe healthbenefits under this Plan.

1. What is COBRA continuation coverage?

COBRA continuation coverage is the temporary extension of grouphealth plancoverage that mustbe olTered to certainPlan
Participants andtheireligible family members (called "Qualified Bencflciaries") atgroup rates. Theright toCOBRA continuation coverage
is triggered bythe occurrence of a lifeeventthat results in the lossof coverage underthe termsof the Plan(the "Qualifying Event"). The
coverage must beidentical to thecoverage thattheQualified Beneficiary hadimmediately before theQualifying Event, or if thecoverage
has beenchanged, thecoverage mustbe identical to the coverage provided to similarly situated activeemployees who havenotexperienced
a QualifyingEvent (in other words, similarlysituated non-COBRAbeneficiaries).

2. Who can become a Qualified Beneficiary?

In general, a Qualified Beneficiarycan be:

(a) Any individual who, on the day beforea QualifyingEvent, is coveredundera Plan by virtue of beingon that dayeither a covered
Employee, the Spouse ofa covered Employee, or a Dependent child ofa covered Employee. If, however, an individual who otherwise
qualifiesas a Qualified Beneficiaryis denied or not offered coverage under the Plan under circumstances in which the denial or failure
to offer constitutesa violationofapplicable law, then the individualwill be consideredto have had the coverage and will be
considered a QualifiedBeneficiaryifthat individualexperiences a Qualifying Event.

(b) Any child who is bom to or placed for adoption with a covered Employeeduring a period of COBRA continuationcoverage,and
any individualwho is covered by the Plan as an alternate recipientunder a qualified medical support order. If, however,an individual
who otherwise qualifies asa Qu^ified Beneficiary isdenied ornot offered coverage under the Plan under circumstances inwhich the
denial or failureto offer constitutes a violation ofapplicable law, then the individual will be considered to have had the coverageand
will be considered a Qualified BeiKficiary ifthat individual experiences a Qualifying Event.

The term "covered Employee" includes any individual who is providedcoverage under the Plan due to his or ter performanceof
servicesfor the employersponsoringthe Plan. However,this provisiondoes not establisheligibilityofthese individuals. Eligibilityfor Plan
coverageshall bedeterminedin accordancewith Plan Eligibilityprovisions.

An individual is not a Qualified Beneficiaryif the individual'sstatus as a covered Employeeis attributable to a period in which the
individualwas a nonresidentalien who received from the individual's Employerno earned income that constituted income from sources
withinthe UnitedStates. If, on accountof the precedingreason,an individual is not a QualifiedBeneficiary, then a Spouseor Dependent
childof the individual will also not be considereda QualifiedBeneficiary by virtueof the relationship to the individual. A domesticpartner
is not a QualifiedBeneficiary.

Each QualifiedBeneficiary(including a child who is bom to or placed foradoption with a covered Employeeduring a periodof
COBRAcontinuationcoverage) must be ofTered the opportunityto make an independentelection to receive COBRA continuation
coverage.

3. What is a Qualifying Event?

A QualifyingEvent is any ofthe following if the Plan providedthat the Plan participantwould lose coverage(i.e., cease to be covered
under the same terms and conditionsas in effect immediatelybefore the QualifyingEvent) in the absence ofCOBRAcontinuation
coverage:

(a) The death ofa covered Employee.

(b) The termination(other than by reason of the Employee'sgross misconduct),or reduction ofhours, of a covered Employee's
emplt^ent.

09/14



(c) The divorceor legal separation ofa covered Employee fi'om the Employee'sSpouse, [f the Employee reduces or eliminates the
Employee'sSpouse's Plan coverage in anticipationofa divorceor legal separation, and a divorce or legal separation later occurs, then
the divorceor legal separation may be considereda QualifyingEvent even though the Spouse's coverage was reducedor eliminated
before the divorce or legal separation.

(d) A covered Employee'senrollment in any part ofthe Medicareprogram.

(e) A Dependentchild's ceasing to satisfythe Plan's requirements for a Dependent child (for example, attainment of the maximum
age fbr dependencyunder the Plan).

If the QualifyingEvent causes the covered Employee,or the covered Spouse or a Dependentchild of the covered Employee,to cease
to be covered under the Plan under the same terms and conditions as in effect immediately before the Qualifying Event, the persons losing
such coveragebecomeQualified Beneficiariesunder COBI^ if all the other conditions of COBRA are also met. For example, any increase
in contribution that mustbe paid by a coveredEmployee, or the Spouse,or a Dependentchildofthe coveredEmployee, for coverage under
the Plan that results from the occurrence ofone ofthe events listed above is a loss ofcoverage.

The taking of leave under the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 ("FMLA")does not constitutea QualifyingEvent. A Qualifying
Eventwill occur, however, if an Employeedoes not return to emplc^ent at the end of the FMLA leave and all other COBRAcontinuation
coverageconditionsare present. If a QualifyingEvent occurs, it occurs on the last day of FMLA leave and the applicable maximum
coverageperiod is measured from this date (unless coverage is lost at a later date and the Plan provides for the extension ofthe required
periods, in which case the maximum coverage date is measured from the date when the coverage is lost.) Note that the covered Employee
and family members will be entitled to COBRA continuation coverage even if they failed to pay the employee portion of premiums for
coverage under the Plan during the FMLA leave.

4. What factors should be considered when determining to elect COBRA continuation coverage?

You should take into account that a feilure to continue your group health coveragewill affect your rights under federal law. First, you
can lose the right to avoid having pre-existingconditionexclusions applied by other group health plans if there is more than a 63-day gap in
health coverage and election ofcQbRAcontinuation coverage may help you avoid such agap. (These pre-existing condition exclusions
will only apply during Plan Years that begin before January 1,2014.) Second, if you do not elect COBRA continuationcoverage and pay
the appropriatepremiums for the maximum time available to you, you will lose the right to convert to an individual health insurance policy,
which does not impose such pre-existing condition exclusions. Finally, you should take into account that you have special enrollment rights
under federal law (HIPAA). You have the ri^t to request special enrollment in another group health plan for which you are otherwise
eligible (such as a plan sponsored by your Spouse's employer) within 30 days afler Plan coverage ends due to a Qualifying Event fisted
above. You will also have the same special right at the end of COBRAcontinuationcoverageifyou get COBRA continuationcoverage for
the maximum time available to you.

5. What Is the procedure for obtaining COBRA continuation coverage?

The Plan has conditionedthe availabilityofCOBRA continuation coverageupon the timely election of such coverage.An election is
timely if it is madeduring the election period.

6. What is the election period and how long must it last?

The election period is the time period vnthin which the Qualified Beneficiary must elect COBRA continuation coverage under the
Plan.The election period must begin no later than the date the Qualified Beneficiarywould lose coverage on accountof the Qualifying
Event and ends 60 days after the later ofthe date the Qualified Beneficiarywould lose coverageon accountofthe QualifyingEvent or the
date notice is providedto the Qualified Beneficiaryof her or his right to elect COBRA continuationcoverage. If coverage is not elected
within the 60 day period, all rights to elect COBRA continuationcoverage are forfeited.

Note: Ifa covered Employee who has been terminated or experienceda reduction ofhours qualifies for a trade readjustmentallowance
or alternativetrade adjustmentassistance under a federal law called the Trade Act of2002, and the employee and his or her covered
dependents have not elected COBRA coverage within the normal election period, a second opportunity to elect COBRA coverage will be
made available for themselves and certain family members, but only within a limited period of60 days or less and only during the six
months immediately after their group health plan coverage ended. Any person who qualifies or thinks that he or she and/or his or her family
membersmay qualify for assistance under this special provisionshould contact the Plan Administrator or its designee for further
information.

The Trade Act of2002 also created a tax credit for certain TAA-eligible individuals and for certain retired employees who are
receivingpensionpayments from the Pension Benefit GuarantyCorporation(PBGC) (eligible individuals). Under the new tax provisions,
eligible individuals can either take a tax creditor get advancepaymentof a partofthe premiumspaid for qualifiedhealth insurance,
including continuation coverage. If you havequestions aboutthesenewtax provisions, youmaycall the HealthCoverage Tax Credit
ConsumerContactCenter toll-free at 1-866-628-4282. TTD/TTYcallers maycall toll-ftee at 1-866-626-4282. More informationabout the
Trade Act is also available at www.doleta.gov/tradeact.

09/14



7. Is a covered Employee or Qualified Beneficiary responsible for informing the Plan Administrator of the occurrence of a
Qualifying Event?

The Plan will offer COBRA continuation coverage to Qualified Beneficiariesonly after the Plan Administratoror its designee has
beentimelynotified that a Qualifying Eventhasoccurred. TheEmployer (if the Employer is not the PlanAdministrator) will notifythe
PlanAdministrator or its designeeofthe Qualif^ng Event within30 days following the date coverageends whenthe Qualifying Event is;

(a) the end ofemploymentor reduction ofhours ofemployment,

(b) death of the employee,

(c) commencement ofa proceedingin bankruptcy with respect to the Employer, or

(d) entitlementof the employeeto any part ofMedicare.

IMPORTANT:

For the other Qualifying Events (divorce or legal separation of the employee and spouse or a dependent child's losing
eligibility for coverage as a dependent child), you or someone on your behalf must notify the Plan Administrator or its designee in
writing within 60 days after the Qualifying Event occurs, using the procedures specified below. If these procedures arc not followed
or if the notice is not provided in writing to the Plan Administrator or its designee during the 60-day notice period, any spouse or
dependent child who loses coverage will not be offered the option to elect continuation coverage. You must send this notice to the
Plan Administrator or its designee.

NOTICE PROCEDURES;

Any notice that you provide must be in writing. Oral notice, including notice by telephone, is not acceptable. You must mail, lax
or hand-deliver your notice to the person, department or firm listed below, at the following address:

CityofSelah
115 WNaches Avenue

Selah, Washington 98942

If mailed,your notice must be postmarked no later than the last day ofthe required notice period. Anynotice you provide must state:

• the name of the plan or plans under whidi you lost or are losing coverage,
• the name and address of the employee covered under the plan,
• the name(s) and address(es) of the Qualified Beneficiary(ies), and
• the Qualifying Event and the date it happened.

If the QualifyingEvent is a divorce or legal separation, your notice must include a copy of the divorce decree or the legal
separation agreement.

Be aware that there are other notice requirements in other contexts, for example, in order to qualify for a disabilityextension.

Once the Plan Administrator or its designee receives timeiv notice that a Qualifying Event has occurred, COBRA continuation
coverage will be offered to each of the qualified beneficiaries. Each Qualified Beneficiary will have an independent right to elect
COBRA continuation coverage. Covered employees may elect COBRA continuation coverage for their spouses, and parents may elect
COBRAcontinuationcoverage on behalf oftheir children. For each Qualified Beneficiarywho elects COBRA continuationcoverage,
COBRA continuation coverage will begin on the date that plan coverage would otherwise have been lost. If you or your spouse or
dependentchildrendo not elect continuation coveragewithin the 60-dayelection period describedabove, the right to elect continuation
coveragewill be lost.

8. Is a waiver before the end of the election period effective to end a Qualified Beneficiary's election rights?

If, during the election period, a Qualified Beneficiarywaives COBRAcontinuationcoverage, the waiver can be revokedat any time
before the end of the election period. Revocationofthe waiver is an electionof COBRAcontinuation coverage. However, ifa waiver is
later revoked, coverage need not be provided retroactively (that is, from the date ofthe loss ofcoverage until the waiver is revoked).
Waivers and revocations ofwaivers are considered made on the date they are sent to the Plan Administrator or its designee, as applicable.

9. Is COBRA coverage available if a Qualified Beneficiary has other group health plan coverage or Medicare?

Qualified Beneficiaries who are entitled to elect COBRA continuation coverage may do so even if they are covered under another
grouphealthplanor areentitledto Medicare benefits on or beforethe dateon whichCOBRA is elected. However, a Qualified
Beneficiary^COBRA coverage will terminate automatically if, after electing COBRA, he or she becomes entitled to Medicareor becomes

7

09/14



covered under other group health plan coverage (but only after any applicable preexistingcondition exclusionsofthat other plan have been
exhausted or satisfted).

10. When may a Qualified Beneficiary's COBRA continuation coverage be terminated?

Duringthe electionperiod,a QualifiedBeneficiarymay waiveCOBRAcontinuationcoverage. Except Tor an interruption of coverage
in connection witha waiver, COBRAcontinuation coverage thathas beenelectedfora Qualified Beneficiary mustextendforat leastthe
periodbeginning on the dateof the Qualiiying Eventand endingnot before theearliestof the following dates:

(a) The last day of the tqtplicable maximum coverageperiod.

(b) The first day for which Timely Payment is not made to the Plan with respect to the Qualified Beneficiary.

(c) The date upon which the Employer ceases to provideany group health plan (including a successor plan) to any employee.

(d) The date, after the date ofthe election, that the Qualified Bcneficiaiy first becomescovered under any other Plan that does not
contain anyexclusion or limitation with respect to any pre-existingcondition,other than such an exclusion or limitationthat does not
apply to, or is satisfied by, the Qualified Beneficiaiy.

(e) The date, after the date of the election, that the Qualified Beneficiaiyfirst becomesentitled to Medicare(either part A or part B,
whichever occurs earlier).

(0 In the case of a Qualified Beneficiaiy entitled to a disability extension, the later of:

(1) (i) 29 monthsafter the date ofthe Qualiiying Event, or (ii) the firstday ofthe month that is more than 30 days after the date
of a final determination under Title II or XVI ofthe Social Security Act that the disabled (^alified Beneficiary whose disability
resulted in the Qualified Beneficiary'sentitlement to the disabilityextension is no longer disabled, whichever is earlier; or

(2) the end of the maximum coverage period that applies to the QualifiedBeneficiarywithout regard to the disabilityextension.

The Plancanterminate forcausethe coverage of a Qualified Beneficiary on the samebasisthat the Planterminates forcause the
coverage of similarly situatednon-COBRA beneficiaries, forexample, fortte submission of a fraudulent claim.

In the caseof an individual who is not a QualifiedBeneficiaiyand who is receivingcoverage under the Plansolely becauseofthe
individual's relationship to a QualifiedBeneficiary, if the Plan'sobligationto makeCOBRAcontinuationcoverage availableto the
Qualified Beneficiaiyceases, the Plan is not obligated to makecoverage availableto the individual who is not a Qualified Beneficiaiy.

11. What are the maximum coverage periods for COBRA continuation coverage?

The maximum coverageperiodsare based on the type of the Qualifying Event and the status of the QualifiedBeneficiaiy, as shown
below.

(a) In the caseof a QualifyingEvent that is a termination of employment or reductionofhours of employment,the maximum
coverage period ends 18months aftertheQualifying Event if thereis nota disability extension and29 months aftertheQualifying
Event if there is a disabilityextension.

(b) In the caseof a covered Employee's enrollment in the Medicare program beforeexperiencing a Qualifying Event that is a
termination of employment or reduction of hoursof employment, the maximum coverage periodforQualified Beneficiaries endson
the later of:

(1) 36 monthsafter the date the coveredEmployee becomesenrolledin the Medicareprogram. This extensiondoes not applyto
the covered Employee; or

(2) 18months (or29 months, if there isa disability extension) afterthedate of the covered Employee's termination of
employment or reduaion ofhours of employment.

(c) Inthe caseof a Qualified Beneficiary whois a childbomto or placedforadoption witha coveredEmployee duringa periodof
COBRA continuation coverage, the maximum coverage periodis the maximum coverage periodapplicable to the Qualifying Event
givingriseto the periodof COBRAcontinuation coverage duringwhichthe childwasbom or placedforadoption.

(d) In the case of any other Qualifying Event than that describedabove, the maximumcoverage period ends 36 monthsafter the
Qualifying Event.

09/14



12. Under what circumstances can the maximum coverage period be expanded?

If a QualifyingEvent that gives rise to an 18-monthor 29-month maximumcoverageperiod is followed, within that 18-or 29-month
period, by a second QualifyingEvent that gives rise to a 36-monthsmaximum coverage period, the original period is expanded to 36
months, butonly for individualswlroare Qualified Beneficiariesat the time of and with respect to both Qualifying Events. In no
circumstancecan the COBRA maximum coverage period be expandedto more than 36 months after the date of the first Qualifying Event.
The Plan Administratormust be notified ofthe second qualifyingevent within 60 days of the second qualifying event. This notice must be
sent to the Plan Administratoror its designee in accordance with the proceduresabove.

13. How does a Qualified Beneficiary become entitled to a disability extension?

A disability extension will be granted ifan individual (whether or not the covered Employee) who is a Qualified Beneficiary in
connection with the Quaiifying Event that is a termination or reduction ofhours ofa covered Employee's employment, is determined under
Title II or XVI of the Social Security Act to have been disabled at any time during the first 60 days of COBBLA continuationcoverage.To
qualify for the disabilityextension, the Qualified Beneficiarymust also providethe Plan Administrator with notice of the disability
determination on a date that is both within 60 days after the date ofthe determination and before the end of the original 18-month
maximumcoverage.This notice must be sent to the PlanAdministratoror its designee in accordance with the proceduresabove.

14. Does the Plan require payment for COBRA continuation coverage?

For any period of COBRAcontinuation coverage under the Plan, Qualified Beneficiarieswho elect COBRAcontinuationcoverage
may be requiredto pay up to 102%of the applicable premium and up to 150%of the applicable premium for any expanded period of
COBRAcontinuationcoveragecovering a disabled QualifiedBeneficiarydue to a disabilityextension. Your Plan Administratorwill
inform you ofthe cost. The Plan will terminate aQu^ified Beneficiary's COBRA continuation coverage as ofthe first day ofany period for
which timely payment is not made.

15. Must the Plan allow payment for COBRA continuation coverage to be made in monthly installments?

Yes. The Plan is also permitted to allow for payment at other intervals.

16. What Is Timely Payment for COBRA continuation coverage?

Timely Payment means a payment made no later than 30 days after the first day of the coverage period. Payment that is made to the
Plan by a later date is also considered Timely Payment ifeither under the terms of the Plan, covered Employeesor Qualified Beneficiaries
are allowed until that later date to pay for their coverage for the periodor under the terms of an arrangement between the Employerand the
entity that provides Plan benefits on the Employer^ behalf, the Employeris allowed until that later date to pay for coverage of similarly
situated non-COBRA beneficiaries for the period.

Notwithstandingthe above paragraph, the Plan does not require paymentfor any period of COBRA continuation coverage for a
QualifiedBeneficiaryearlier than 45 days after the date on which the electionofCOBRA continuationcoverage is made for that Qualified
Beneficiary.Payment is consideredmade on the date on which it is postmarkedto the Plan.

If Timely Payment is made to the Plan in an amount that is not significantly less than the amount the Plan requires to be paid for a
periodofcoverage, then the amount paid will be deemed to satisfy the Plan's requirement for the amount to be paid, unless the Plan notifies
the Qualified Beneficiaryofthe amount of the deficiencyand grants a reasonableperiod oftime for payment of the deficiencyto be made.
A "reasonableperiodoftime" is 30 days after the notice is provided A shortfall in a Timely Payment is not significant if it is no greater
thanthe lesserof$50or 10%of the required amount.

17. Must a Qualified Beneficiary be given the right to enroll in a conversion health plan at the end of the maximum coverage
period for COBRA continuation coverage?

If a QualifiedBeneficiary'sCOBRA continuationcoverage under a group health plan ends as a result of the expiration of the
applicable maximum coverage period, the Plan will, during the 180-day pericid that ends onthat expiration date, provide the Qualified
Beneficiarywith the option ofenrolling under a conversionhealth plan if such an option is otherwise generallyavailable to similarly
situated non-COBRA beneficiariesunder the Plaa If such a conversionoption is not otherwise generally available, it need not be made
available to Qualified Beneficiaries.

IF YOU HAVE QUESTIONS

If you have questions about your COBRA continuation coverage, you should contact the Plan Administrator or its designee. For more
informationabout your rights under ERISA, includingCOBRA, the Health Insurance Portabilityand AccountabilityAct (HIPAA), and
other laws affectinggroup health plans, contact the nearest Regionalor DistrictOflioe of the U.S. DepartmentofLabor's Employee
BenefitsSecurityAdministration(EBSA). Addressesand phone numbersofRegionaland Distria EBSA Offices ate available through
EBSA'swebshe at www.dol.gov/ebsa

09/14



KEEP YOUR PLAN ADMINISTRATOR INFORMED OF ADDRESS CHANGES

In order to protectyour family^ rights, you should keep the PlanAdministrator informedofany changes in the addressesof family
members. Youshouldalso keepa copy, for your records,ofany noticesyousend to the PlanAdministrator or its designee.

X

SUMMARY

The moneyyou earn is importantto you and your family. You need it to payyour bills,enjoy recreational activitiesand save for the
future. Our premium payment planwillhelpyoukeep moreof the money youearn by lowering the amount of taxesyou pay. ThePlan is
the result of our continuingefforts to find ways to help you get the most for your earnings.

If you have anyquestions,please contact the Administrator.

10

09/14



IN WITNESSWHEREOF, this Plan document is herebyexecuted this day of_

CityofSelah

By.
EMPLOYER

II



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

9/23/2014 M-2

Title: Resolution Approving the Preliminary Plat of "First and Home Estates"
(912.67.14-04) and Adopting Findings and Conditions of Preliminary Plat
Approval

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Dennis Davison, Community Planner

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Approval

Fiscal Impact: NA

Funding Source: NA

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of the "First and Home Estates" preliminary plat as recommend by
the Hearing Examiner

Background / Findings & Facts:

Hearing Examiner conducted the "First and Home Estates" Preliminary Plat
public hearing on July 3V\ Two individuals attended the hearing and spoke in
opposition. On August 25''* the Examiner issued a recommendation of approval
of the preliminary plat, subject to seven (7) conditions of approval.

Recommended Motion:



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

I move we accept and adopt the Examiner's August 25'*^ recommendation as our
own, approving the "First and Home Estate" Preliminary Plat (with seven
conditions).

V/17/20i'i I M



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City
Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date: Action Taken:

7/31/2014 Hearing Examiner public hearing on the "First and Home

Estate" Preliminary Plat (912.67.14-04).

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY PLAT OF "FIRST AND HOME

ESTATES'*(912.67.14-04) AND ADOPTING FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS OF
PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL

WHEREAS, on September23,2014 the City ofSelah CityCouncil considered Preliminary Plat No.
912.67.14-04 known as "FIRST AND HOME ESTATES" located at 102 / 104 East Home Avenue.
Yakima County Taxation Parcel Numbers: (181436-32023 and 181436-32024)

WHEREAS, the City ofSelah consideredand adopted the Hearing Examiner recommendationof
approval, did adopted the findings offact, conclusions and conditions for approval of"First and Home
Estates" preliminary plat as recommended by the Examiner and the Council is satisfied that the matterhas
been sufQciently considered; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the elements ofpublic use and interest to be served by such
platting, and

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the elements ofpublic health, safety, and general welfare
pertaining to the preliminary plat;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTONthat PreliminaryPlat No. 912.67.14-04designated as "First and Home Estates" be
approved with seven (7) specific conditions contained in the Examiner's Recommendation and a copy is
attached hereto.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON
this 23"* day ofSeptember, 2014.

ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, ClerkA"reasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert Noe, City Attomey

91Z67.I<MM PLAT OF "FIRST AND HOME ESTATES"

RESOLUTION OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL

John Gawlik, Mayor



CONDITIONS OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL

1. All design and/or improvement notations indicated on the preliminary plat are included herein as
conditions of preliminary plat approval, (i.e., private easement widths and locations, lot size and lot
configuration, etc.)

2. Final lot dimensions and lot area must substantially conform to the preliminary plat.

3. Road improvements that were not previouslyapproved by the City shall be designed by a Licensed
Profession^ Engineer. Upon completion ofadditional approved construction and prior to final plat
approval, the applicant shall submit to the City Public Works Department final "as-built" construction
plans and a written certification by a Licensed Professional Engineer that said private improvements
were completed in accordance with the construction plans. These documents must be submitted to the
Public Works Department for storage.

4. The following note must be placed on the final plat map:

The "First and Home Estates Homeowners Association, any grantees or assignees
in interest, hereby covenant and agree to retain ail surface water generated within
the plat on-site."

5. The "First and Home Estates Declaration ofCovenants, Conditions and Restrictions" shall be
amended to define the open space park area depicted on the "Preliminary Planned Development: First
and Home Estates" plat map as Common Area for the recreational use of the members of the "First and
Home Estates Homeowners Association" within the meaning of the included in the application
materials.

6. The "First and Home Estates Declaration ofCovenants, Conditions and Restrictions" and
"Addendum to the First and Home Estates Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions"
shall be submitted to the City ofSelah City Attorney for approval prior to final plat approval, and, in
approved form, shall be recorded simultaneously with the final plat map.

7. Any changes to the use ofor structures on the properties within the designated PD zoning district
shall be subject to review pursuant to Chapter 10.24 SMC or any superseding ordinance.

RESOLUTION NO.

912.67.144)4 PLAT OF "FIRST AND HOME ESTATES"

RESOLUTION OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL



NW COA. SC& 36.
T*U N. R*16 E.MI

r itu. g.c nto
SS Lcn tM-tSSl

-

W1/4 OCR. SEC:36.
T-U R R-)B e,MI i
2«1/r AUM. CAP
M ICON: CAtt fNO.

SEC ICR 2M*660

Sir COR KW1/4,
sir 1/4, ac. so.

T^u N. R-te urn .
r 8.C MVONUKNT \

CASE roUNOi ^
sa ICR TUHOOO

(N COW
N eow

HOME AVENUE

N MWW c loaoo

LOT 1
3306 sa FT

LOT 3
3390 sa n.

N eofwoo* c

ALLEY

MMHI PAWB Mirr-

• V. tocom^-. !vN'

uwr m A

LOT 2
2607 so. n

N aoww c ♦i.Ty

a tsn ttsi ^
LOT 4

2639 Sa FT

4i.5r

PRELIMINARY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
OF

1ST AND HOME ESTATES
IN THE NW 1/4 OF THE SW 1/4 OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 14 NORTH, RANGE 18 EAST, W.M.

CITY OF SELAH, YAKIMA COUNTY, WASHINGTON

PARca. m.
t3MSS-82022

SELAH

victNmr MAP

LEGAL DESCRPTIONS

PARCEL A

THE SOUIH HALF OF TK£ POOOWKO DCSCFWB MCPCRTft

A TRACT OF LAND LtINGM TNC REST HAl/ CF SCCTtON 36. T0WN9CP 14
NORTH. PUNCe to. DCSCneCD AS PCUOWS:

BCCatKNG AT AN RON PtH AT 1HC SOUIWCSI CCRP^ OfTHE NORTKICSt
OUAfllCR or THE SOUTHWEST OUAATCR OF SCCTON 36}
THENCE NORTH OW ICST 1206.1 FIR TOIX tW OF BCCNKNft
THDtce CAST too rccs
THENCE NORTH OW VEST 140 FCCTS
TMtNCE ICST too FESn
THEKKSOUTH OW CAST140 FEET TO TX POCNT OF 0ECMNMO.

except that portion CONVCYCD to TX OTYOF SCLAM SY DEED RCCCRDCD
UNDER AUOnOR'S fU Na 3033(64.

PARCa B

TX NORTHHALF OF TX rOOOCNC OCSCRSEDPMPCnT.

A TRACT OF LAND lYM M TX RESTHALF OF SECTION 36, tCmStP 14
NORTK RANCC 10. LKN.. OESCROED AS FCLlOWS:

eceVMNO AT ANMN PM AT TX SOUTHICST CCRXR CF TX NORTMCST
OUARIEROF TX SOUTKRESTGUARTDIOF StCTtON 36;
1XKCCNORTH <r04* REST 1206.1 FEET TOTX POWT OFeCGMCNQ;
TXNCE EAST 100 FEE:
TXNCE NORTHOW REST t«0 ftTTs
THENCE WST 100 fCCli _ ^
THENCE SOUTH 094* CAST 140 FEET TOTX PONT OFBCCMOtO.

EXCEPT THAT PORTION CONXCD TOTX OTY CF SOANBYDEED XCOROED
IMOCR AIOTOR^ rU NO 3823164.

NOTES

1. TOTAL AREA OF PRCPOSCO SUBOMSCN IS 12.287M n7&78 ACXS.

2. PERCOTTACC OF UM) COCRAOC 8T OMRLIL ORRCVAYS IS t6.6]t

3. ALL STRUCTURES ARE EHSTtNO AND ARC CmRENTLT SERXD ST Aa
XCCSSARY UTUTtCS.

4. SUBjECT PNUPtRTI AND ADJACENT CffF OF SOAH WWTXS ARC 30NIB
R-2. UOOCRATC KNSTY DCaLOPUOIT ZOX.

UNI LOT

SStM

FT.

CNVOOM

SaFT.

HOI

nxLoacs

IDIOT

FAOWO

SAAaKA

LOT

CNOMSUAL

YAKOSMa

taiT.

OiM'WaiT

tFAaxn

1 SH ia ZUR 2 20« m

7 2£9T im 2«-M 1 14U

t XKI m ajK > 9IU at

« 2m m 2AM 9 ten at

SURVEYOR/ENGffCCR
RiCKARD L RD«L PlS
PISA Qtmasow * sufMnNO
1120 vcsr UNOOIN AVENUE
YAXOAA. KASNMCTON 68802

OWNER/DEVaOPER
CARL TORKOLSON
rORXCLSCN CONSTRUCTION
p.a eox 282
SELAH. KASHCNCTON 08643

a —^ - ENGMEeRWa-SURVrmO-PlAWMQ
ll 1 ^2 A TBO WEST IMCOIM AVDUC

YAKkM. WASHNOTON 08m
(BOO) srS-«S90

PREUMNARY PLAMO DEVELOPMENT NMNM RICK

OP PARCa NO'S. 181436 • 32023 R 32034
•^PREPAMD FOR—

TORKaSON CONSTRUCTtON

M MO. U0S7

X oOMa

1 cr 1NW 1/4, SW 1/4, SEC.36. T-14 N. R-1S C.WU



Cily ofSelah* Washington
OfBce of the Hearing Examiner

Application for a Rezonc and
Preliminaty Plat

By Torkelson Construction, Inc.

To Rezone Property at the intersection of
North First Street and Home Avenne

from Two-Family Residential to Planned
Development and Approve the 4-Parcel
Preliminaiy Plat of 1st and Home
Estates.

Selah FUe Nos. 912.67.14-04;
914.67.14-03

HEARING EXAMINER

RECOMMENDATION

I. INTRODUCTION.

Torkelson Construction (hereafter 'Torkelson^ has applied to rezone and subdivide 2 parcels of
property on North First Street in accordance with Planned Development pnmsions of the Selah
zoning ordinance. Thename of the project proposal andsubdivision is '*1^ andHome Estates."
The two properties were previously each developed into duplexes. The proposal would result in
the subdivision of each the existing 2 lots into 2 new lots, resulting in a total of4 lots, each with
a single family residential structure. An open record hearing on the planned development and
subdivision proposal was conducted July 31, 2014. The Hearing Examiner viewed the site on
the same date. The Community Planner provided a staff report prior to the hearing, vtiuch is
included in the hearing record. Two members of the public commented on the application at the
hearing. The commoats concemed impacts to traffic, effects on neighboring uses, and adequacy
of existing city services provided in the neighborhood. The commiraits did not bear on the
proposed division ofland or on other aspects ofthe planned development ordinance as applied to
the application. Because of questions regarding the conditions leading to the current access to
the south parcel ffom an alley rather than a street, the record was held open. The community
planner reported by td^hone to the Hearing Examiner on August IS, 2015 that no additional
documents were available with respect to the current pattern ofdevelopm«it on die propraty.

IL SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION.

Because the structures subject to the PD zone ^plication have already been constructed, the
application does not present additional impacts and does not undercut fiiture land use goals in the
Comprehensive Plan, or other provisions oftiie Con^ehensive Plan, it should he APPROVED,
StJBJECT TO CONDITIONS set forth below.

Based on the staffreport and exhibits, the viewing ofthe site, statements and comments received
at the opra record hearing and in writing, and a review ofpertinent development regulations and
comprehensive plan, the Hearing Examiner makes the following



in. FINDINGS.

1. APPLICANT AND PROPERTY OWNER.

The applicadoos for rezoneand subdivisionwere filed by Caii Torkelsonon behalfofTorkelson
Construction, which is the property owner ofrecord-

2. LOCATION.

Theproperties are locatedat 303Home Avenueand 104North First Street in the CityofSelah.

3. PARCEL NUMBER!SV

The Yakima County Assessors Tax Parcel Numbers for the subject property are 181436-32023
and 181436-32024.

4. APPLICATIONS.

The applications proposeto rezoneapproxiniately 0.28acre from Two-Family Residential (R-2)
to Planned Development (PD) and concurrraitly subdivide the site into four (4) single family
residential lots consistent with the Plarnied Development Plan and Program.

Proposed Lot Lot Area

(sq.ft±)
Lot 1: 3295

Lot 2: 2697

Lot 3; 3356

Lot 4: 2936

The average of the proposed lots is 3,071 sq. ft. Based on total acreage of 0.28 acres, the
existing residential density ofthe project is approximately 14 units per gross acre. As shown on
the preliminary plat. Lots 1 and 3 would be subject to protection as a 684 square feet open space
park area.

Potable water is provided to each residence by individual service lines from meters located at a
cratral water meter vault connected to the 8" dty water main on East Home Avenue. Individual
sewer line connections are provided to the existing 8" sewer main running on East Home
Avenue.

Access to the north lots would be provided from East Home Drive at existing driveways. Access
to the south lots would be from driveways already in place offofthe asphalt paved alley running
between East Home Aveime and Bartlett Avenue.

Stormwater management would be unchanged from current conditions.

Page 2
]" and Home Estates
912.67.14-04; 914.67.14-03



The CCRs provide for ownership of the common areas by the Homeowners AssociatiorL The
Homeowners Association would also be responsible for maintenance of the common area.

5. CURRENT SITE CONDITION AND ZONING

The subject propraty is zoned Two Family Residential (R-2). The property is currently 40%
covered by improvements. The property contains 2 duplexes that were constructed in 2004
accordmg to Yakima County Assessor records.' The development predates current zoning and
comprehensive plan designations and standards. The Community Planner stated at hearing that,
when establish^ the existing development was a legal conforming use. There has been no
installation of sidewalk or lighting improvements typically associated with curbs on East Home
Avenue or the paved alley, though there is curb, gutter and sidewalk on North First Street

6. NEIGHBORING ZONING AND LAND USE.

Adjacent lands to the east south and north are zoned Two-Family Residential, and land to the
west is zoned One-Family Residential (R-1). A church is located to the north, residences to the
south and east siid a school to the west

7. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW.

A Determination of Nonsignificance was issued July 16, 2014 for the proposal. No notices of
appeal had been filed as ofthe hearing date.

8. 2005 SELAH URBAN AREA COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION.

The subject property and surrounding areas are designated as Moderate Density Residential on
the Future Land Use Map adopted with the Comprehensive Plan in 2005. This designation
provides for a maximum density of 12 dwelling units per acre. The intended future use of
Moderate Density Residential lands is a mix of single family, two-family, townhouse and
multifamily residences, with duplexes, townhouses and condominium predominating. The mix
ofresidential uses is controlled by the maximum density limitation on future (new) development

9. PRO.TECr ANALYSIS

a. Review Criteria.

The review criteria applicable to a PD ^5plication are set out in SMC 10.24.060 and are
discussed in turn below.

httD://vakimaD.com/servlet/com.esri.esriinap.EsrtmaD?Qame=YakGISH&Left=1632250<SiBottom=482413&Right?°l
633421&Ton='483375&TAS=TabAssessor&DropDovwiOrtho=NQne&Contoiir=&Utilit{es=&FEMA=&CAO=&Dr
onDownPlannin9=2oninfi&DropDownMaoSi2e=Small&click.x=281&click.v=237&Cmd=[D&ORTHO LlST=Non

eAMAP STZE^Small

Pages
I" and Home Estates
912.67.14-04; 914.67.14-03



b. Application ofthe ReviewCriteria

(1) Substantial oonfomiance to the city ofSelah Urban Growth Area ComprehensivePlan:

The City ofSelah Urban GrowthArea Comprehensive Plan designates the property as Medium
Density Residential on the adopted 200S Future Land Use Map. As noted earlier, the plan
contemplates that duplexes, tow^ouses and condominiums are intended to predominate in such
designated lands. The mix of housing types is intended to be regulated by density limitations.
This land use desigDation for the subject properties provides for a maxiimim density of 12
dwelling units per gross acue to control the mix of housing. The density of the current duplex
development, based on 4 dwelling units on 0.28 acres is 14J28 units per gross acre. This is a
higher density than contemplatedfor future land use within foe Comprehensive Plan.

Nonconforming us^ are intended to be replaced with conforming uses policy HSG 1.6 of foe
Comprehensive Plan). If this rqpplication was for new development, foe density would be
inconsistent with foe density provisions of the Congrrehensive Plan, including Policy USG 2.1
(at p. 12) without some showingthat foe quality of design, construction or amenities warranted
greater density allowances. As noted, foe history by which foe current density of development
on foe ptope^ was approved is not part of foe record, except that the Community Plaimer
indicated at hearing that the existing use is a conforming use. The plaimed development
proposal does not include any additional dwelling units that would change foe existing density;
however, based on foe current Future Land Use designation and the purpose of foe zoning
ordinance to implement foe Comprehensive Plan, it is not readily ^parent that foe current use
conforms substantially with the plan. To foe contrary, the proposal has foe effect of decreasing
the number of duplexes in foe Moderate Density Zone, wbirfo the plan intends wotild be the
predominant housingtype. It does so contraryto foeot^ectiveof foe density limits.

(2) The proposal's harmony wifo foe sunounding area, or its potential future use.

If a Planned Development does not present impacts to the surrounding area that are greater than
foe permitted used offoe property under foe existing zoning, it would be in£ppropriate to deny
the Planned Development on the basis of impacts to the surrounding area. Hansen v. Chelan
County, 81 Wn.App. 133,913 P.2d 409 (Wash. App, Div. 3 1996). The project does not involve
new dwelling constniction. Rather it divides foe property into private lots wifo foe lot lines
bdng located betweem the existing dwelling units. The siibdiviition will have no greater or lesser
harmony with foe surrounding area than does foe current use.

(3) The system of ownership and means of development, preserving and maintaining open
space.

The preliminary plat shows foe common open space of 684 square teet, more or less, to be
located on foe boundary of Lots 1 and 3. Final CCR provisions for the common open space
easement must be submitted for approval by foe City Attomey consistent with SMC 10.24.090 as
a condition ofsubdivision fqpproval.

1" and H<HRe Estates
912.67.14^)4; 914.67.14-03



(4) Hie adequacy of the size of the proposed district to accommodate the contemplated
developmrat

The PD ordinance does not provide specific guidance as to what would constitute the '^adequate"
size of property to support a PD qiprovaL The property already accommodatesthe 4 dweUing
units, and while the current development may exceed density allowances, the proposed division
ofland does not cause any material increase in density. In addition, there is no record ofany fire
safety or similar concerns held by city fire or public worics officials regardmg the configuration
of the development or means of access. Given die current use, there is no basis for saying that
the space is not adequatefor the proposed division.

(5) Compliancewith Ch^er 10.24SMC.

a. Thepurpose of Chapter 10.24 SMC is to allow newdevelopment thatis consistent
withthe comprehensive planbut thatwouldnotbe readily permitted in other zoning districts due
to limitations in dimensional standards, permitted uses, or accessory uses. But for the fact that
approval of a planned developmoit zone modifies and supersedes all regulations of the
underlying zoning district, SMC 10.24.010, the lot sizes and setbacks presented by this
^plication would not be permissible in the R-2 zoning districL The ^plicant*s piindipal
objective is to provide for private ownership of die individual dwellings. The individual lot
ownership sfiticmft is argued to provide a higher tax base. The tezom application's program
elements indicate that individnal lot ownership vnll also result in bett^ maintenance.

It is also noteworthy that the Planned Development ordinance relates to new development (in
contrast to existing development) that provides design and amenity values that allow departure
fit>m theotherwise ^plicable design standards. If anexisting development affords such amenity
values without othor adverse effects, it mi^ be supportable to allow departure fixim the
standards. In the present cas^ the property provides at least some common open space fiiat
meets the amaiity related purposes ofthe ordinance and the plan. Thisameliorates the smalllot
sizeproposed on file plat,andthe ledncesideyards between fiie units, andserves at leastto some
extent the purposes of the zoning ordinance to "Provide adequate li^t [and] air." SMC
10,02.030.

b. Commonopen space in a planned developmentzone shallmeet the
following requirements:

(1) The location, shape, size and character of the cpen space must be
suitable for the planned development;
(2) Common open space must be used for amenity or recreational
purposes. The uses aufooiized for the common open space must be
appropriate to the scale and character of the planned development,
considering its size, density, expected population, topogr^hy and number
andtype of dwelling unitsto be provided;
(3) Commonopen space must be suitably iinprovedfiir its intended use,
but common open space containing natural features may be left
unimproved. The bmldings, structures and improvements which are

Pages
1" and Home Estates
912.67.14-04; 914.67.14-03



pemiitted in the common opoi space must be q)proprialB to the uses
whidi are authorized for common open space and must conserve and
enhance the amenities of the common open space in regard to its
topogrj^hy and unimproved conditioiL

SMCl0.24.080(a). As noted, tvh^ standards use general terms such as "suitable" or
"appropriate," the burdenlies withdie City to showthat the proposed projectdoes not meet the
standards, hi the present case, the opra qiace padc area designated on the preliminary plat, if
appropriately landscaped and protected, affords some limited amenityvalue for the residents of
the development

c. Applicationsfor Planned Developments must submit a proposedsubdivisionm^.
The map must complyvrithsubdivision standardsexcept that block and lot designrequirements
may be reduced for good causeshown. SMC 10.50.041(d) and (e). Private accessroads are also
allowable vriien they do not adversely impact the public road syst^ or neighboring properties.
SMC 10.50.041(d)(4). In this instance, the subdivision design is tied to a two-&nily
development lepor^y authorized in accordance with land use regulations inplace at the time of
development U the propertyis to be divided into lotswith a single family dwelling on each,the
lot sizes must necessarilybe reducedbelowthe minimums for the R-2 district

Lotsare to fronton publicstreets witha widthno lessthan the pertinent streetstandards. In this
case, it appears that when tiie duplexes were constructed in 2004, the Cify accepted that the
southern duplex units could be accessed by the paved alley ratiier than by a curb cut in North
First Street which is an arterial street Given that the propertyhas already been developed, in
absence of a showingofadverse impacts fromthe subdivision designper se, there is no reasonto
deny the adjustment of the sub^virion standards in accordance widi the design in tiie
preliminary plat which reflectsexactlythe curroit devdopment

10. PUBUC COMl\lENT CONSIDERATION.

None of the public comment offered at hearing bore directly on the review criteria for PD and
subdivision review and q)proval. Rather, the comments related to finstration with the
complications tihe commentscs confixmted in trying to develop or make improvonents to their
own nearby property, and theirperception tiiat their ^plications were not given consideration
equivalent toth^ ofthe subject application. Some comments were also directed at inadequacy
of the level of municipal services being provided in the Home Avenue^arrett Avenue
neigihborhood. Commerrters were referred to the Community Planner for further discussion of
their concerns.

From the forcing findings, the Hearing Examiner makes the following

IV. CONCLUSIONS.

1. The Hearing Examiner has jurisdiction to conduct an open record hearing on the
plication for a PD tezoneandassociated subdivirion, andmakea recommendation to the Selah
City Council.

Paged
1** and Home Estates
912.67.14-04; 914.67.14-03



2. The density ofthe curreait development oftheproperty etceedsthedensity applicable to
future Moderate Density Residential areas in theComprehensive Plan. Theplanis conc^ed
withdensity effects ofnewdevelopment, rather thandensity of current development, anduses
density as a toolfor regulating themixof single femily, two&mily andmultiple fbnily usesin
Moderate Density Residential lands. Theproposed siAdivision is intended to promotean
increased,proportionofsingle family residential usein thearea,contrary to the stated intentof
theplan. However, virtually alltheproperties inthe R-2 district tothesouth andeastareaare
developed intosingle family dwellii^ on lotsthatfall below theminimum R-2lot Given
the factthat all oftheseproperties are developed, the proposal doeslittleor notiiing to undermine
the future landusegoalsin the Comprehensive Plan^ andcaimot be saidto be in conflict withit

3. Future development of theseproperties wouldbe subjectto review as a modification to
the PD district

4. The r^licant has provided evidence ofthe appropriateness ofsubdividing property in
accordancewith PD tezone meets tiie purposesand requirements ofQuarter 10.24SMCtiiat
wouldallowthe relaxationofotherwise ^licable zoningregulations. However, additional
protections arerequired to assure the legalcommitment ofparkareaopenspace prop^es to
common open^ace as contemplated in the ordinance aremet to the satis&ction oftfae City
AttomQr.

5. Application ofthe reviewcriteria in SMC 10.24.060 supports a recommendation for
approval oftfae proposed rezone andsubdivision, subject to conditions asprovided inthe staff
report and as modified based on the precedingfindings.

V. RECOMMENDATION.

The application by Torkelson Construction, Lie. to rezonepropertyat 303A andB NorthFirst
Street and 104 East Home Avenue fiom Two-fiunily Residential to Plarmed Development and to
subdivide the sameproperty into4 singletemilyresidential lots,as specified in tiie ^plication
materials (FileNo. 912.67.14-04 and 914.67.14-03), should be APPROVED SUBJECTTO THE
FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:

1. All design and/or improvementnotations indicated on the preliminary plat are
included herein as conditions ofpreliminary plat approval (i.e., private easemraitwidths and
locations, lot size and lot configuration, etc.).

2. Final lot dimensions and lot area must substantially conform to the preliminary
plat

3. Road improvements that were not previously {qpproved by City shall be designed
by a LicensedProfessional Engineer. Upon completionofadditionalapprovedconstructionand
prior to finalplat ^roval, the ^licant shallsubmit to the CityPublicWorksDepartment final

Page?
1** and Home Estates
912.67.14-04; 914.67.14-03



"as-built" construction plans and a wiittm certifLcation by a licensed Professional Engineer that
said private improvements completed in accordance with the construction plans. These
documents must be submitted to die Public Works Department for storage.

4. The following note must be placed on the final plat map:

"The 1^and Home Estates Hameowners Association, anygrantees or
assignees in interest, hereto covenant and agree to retain all surface water
generatedwifliinthe plat on-stfe."

5. The "r* and HomeEstates Declaration ofCovenants, Conditions and
Restrictions" shall be amended to define the open space park area depicted on the "Preliminary
Plarmed Development: 1^andHome Estates" platmap asCommon Areafortherecreational use
of themembers of the l'^andHomeEstates Homeowners Association" within the meaning ofthe
included in the plication materials.

6. The"1^andHome Estates Declaration ofCovenants, Conditions and
Restrictions" and "Addendumto the "1** and HomeEstates Declaration ofCovaiants,
CondiiioDS and Restrictions" shall be submitted to the City ofSelah City Attorney for approval
prior to final plat approval, and, inapproved form, shall be recorded simultaneou^y with the
final plat map.

7. Anychangesto the use ofor structures on the properties withinthe deagoated PD
zoningdistrict^all be subjectto review pursuantto Chapter10.24SMCor any superseding
ordinance.

DATED THIS 25™ DAYOFAUGUST, 2014.

Page 8
1°* and Home Estates
912.67J4-04; 914,67.14-03

CD.^mfGIN
G EXAMINE



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

9/23/2014 N-1

Title: Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 1634 Zoning Map Amendment No.
914.67.14-03 Rezone to Planned Development (PD)

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Dennis Davison, Community Planner

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Approval

Fiscal Impact: None immediately

Funding Source: NA

Staff Recommendation:

Adopt Ordinance rezoning property and amending zoning map from Two-
Family Residential (R-2) to Planned Development (PD): First and Home
Estates Planned Development Rezone (914.67.14-03)

Background / Findings & Facts:

Hearing Examiner conducted open record public hearing July 31Prepared
Findings of Fact and Conclusions Recommending Approval with conditions of
the First and Home Estates Planned Development

Recommended Motion:

I moved the Council adopt the Hearing Examiner's Recommendation of

Approval, Adopt the Examiner's Findings and Conclusions as our own and



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

approve with the Examiner's recommended conditions the "First and Home
Estates" Planned Development Rezone 914.67.14-03



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City
Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date: Action Taken:

7/31/2014 Hearing Examiner Open Record Public Hearing

8/25/2014 Hearing Examiner Recommendation

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



ORDmANCE NO.

ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 1634

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT NO. 914.67.14-03 REZONE TO PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT (PD)

WHEREAS, Chapter 35A.63 of the Revised Codeof Washington authorizes the CityCouncil of
theCityof Selah to adopt andamend ofGcial controls including zoning ordinances andzoning
maps; and,

WHEREAS, the CityofSelah Councilhas consideredand adoptedthe HearingExaminer's
findingsof&ct and conclusions ofapprovalofthe 'First & Home Estates" Plarmed Development
rezone and the Council is satisfied that the matter has been sufficiently considered; and,

WHEREAS, the CityCouncilofthe City ofSelah finds that the zoning vaap amendmentfurthers
the purpose, goalsand objectives ofthe 2005 CitvofSelahUrbanGrowthAreaComprehensive
Plan, the CityofSelahZoningOrdinanceand the publichealth, safeQr and generalwel&re;

NOW THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON, DO
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Findings. The recitals set forth above are incorporatedherein as the City
Council's Findings.Further,the HearingExaminer's Findings,Conclusions and Conditionsof
Approvalare adoptedas the City Council's Findingsand Conclusions by this reference.

Section 2. Amendment The following described real property is herebyreclassified fiom
Two Family Residential (R-2) to PlaimedDevelopment (PD):

PARCEL A:

The South Halfofthe following described property:
A tract of land lying in the West half ofSection36, Township 14North, Range 18,E.W.M.
described as follows:

Beginningat an iron pin at the SouthwestComer ofthe NorthwestQuarterofthe
Southwest Quarter ofSection 36; thence North CIM' West 1206.1 feet to the point
ofbeginning; thence East 100 feet; thence North 0"04' West 140; feet; thence West
100 feet; thence South 0®04' East 140 feet to the point ofbegirming; ^CEPTthat
portion conveyedto the City ofSelah by deed recorded imderAuditor's file number
2922164. Situate in Yakima County, Washington

914.67.14-03 FIRST AND HOME ESTATES PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

ORDINANCE OF PLANNED DEVELOPMENT REZONE APPROVAL



PARCEL B:

The North Halfofthe following described property:
A tract of land lyii^ in the West halfofSection 36, Township 14 North, Range 18, E.W.M.
described as follows:

Beginningat an iron pin at the SouthwestComa: ofthe NorthwestQuarterofthe
Southwest QuarterofSection 36; thence North 0°04' West 1206.1 feet to the point
ofbeginning; thence East 100feet; thenceNorth 0°04' West 140;feet; thence West
100 feet; thence South 0®04' East 140 feet to the point ofbeginning; EXCEPT that
portion conveyed to the Cityof Selahbydeedrecorded underAuditor'sfilenumber
2922168. Situate in Yakima County, Washington

Section 3. This ordinance, implementing zoning map amendment number 914.67.14-03
shall becomeeffectivefive (S) days following legal publicationofthis ordinance or a summaryof
this ordinance.

Done this 23"^ day ofSeptember, 2014.

John Gawlik, Mayor
ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk-Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert Noe, City Attomey

ORDINANCE NO.

914.67.14-03 FIRST AND HOME ESTATES PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

ORDINANCE OF PLANNED DEVELOPMENT REZONE APPROVAL


